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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2019, National United Resources Holdings
Limited (the “"Company”, together with its subsidiaries, collectively the
"Group”) has engaged in car rental service business as core business based
in the People’s Republic of China ("PRC"). It is the main source of revenue of
the Group.

Car rental service

The Group engages in car rental services and tour bus rental services in the
industry of commuter bus leasing market in the PRC. The car rental services
includes (i) shuttle bus services for employees/students of institutional
customers between the working places/schools to different residential
communities by conventional energy vehicles and/or electric buses; (ii) car
rental services without chauffeured service; and (iii) car rental services for
different business and leisure purpose such as pick-up services requested by
the institutional or individual customers. The total revenue was increased for
the year ended 31 December 2019 due to the consecutive increment in the
number of buses leased. The Group currently operates its car rental services
and tour bus rental services through the TMTC Group (as hereinafter defined),
which were merged into the Group by acquisition of all equity interest of
Gear World Development Limited in the year 2016. The business contributed
source of revenue of the Group since September 2016. It is apparently
significant in operation scale. Customers include prominent corporations
such as Tencent, Alibaba, Baidu, Mercedes-Benz, DHL, BMC, governmental
department and international schools, such as Yiuchong International
Schools.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Consolidation of TMTC Travel

R AFBEHTEMREER AR (Beijing Tian Ma Tong Chi Car Rental Co.,
Ltd*) (“TMTC Rental”) became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company in 2016. It held 49% equity interest in 1t K 5 i 5t ik 2 =8 H
[R 2 7] (Beijing Tian Ma Tong Chi Travel Transportation Co., Ltd*) (“TMTC
Travel”, together with TMTC Rental, the “TMTC Group”). TMTC Group
engaged in bus transportation services, passenger operating and car rental
services.

On 1 September 2019, TMTC Rental and It REEBERIFERER A
Al (Beijing Dingyan Shengshi Technology Development Co., Ltd.*) (“Beijing
Dingyan”), which owns 51% equity interest in TMTC Travel, entered into an
agreement (the “Shareholder Control Agreement”), pursuant to which Beijing
Dingyan irrevocably delegated its management rights over TMTC Travel to
TMTC Rental.

To reflect the management control over TMTC Travel by TMTC Rental through
the Shareholder Control Agreement, the articles of TMTC Travel have been
amended to that effect and the financial results of TMTC Travel has been
consolidated into TMTC Rental’s account pursuant to HKFRS 10 commencing
from 1 September 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD (cont’d)

Disposal of Subsidiaries

On 24 July 2019, (i) Billions Achieve Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, as vendor entered into a sale and purchase agreement
(“Sale and Purchase Agreement |I”) with, among others, Forever Nice
Corporation Limited (“Purchaser 1”), an independent third party, as purchaser
in respect of the entire issued share capital of Placid Expression Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company immediately prior to the Sale
and Purchase Agreement |, at consideration of HK$1; and (ii) the Company,
NUR Enterprise Limited, NUR Industry (Hong Kong) Company Limited and
NUR Clean Energy Investment Limited, the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, as vendors entered into a sale and purchase agreement (“Sale and
Purchase Agreement II”) with the Purchaser | as purchaser in respect of the
entire issued share capital of five wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company
immediately prior to the Sale and Purchase Agreement Il, namely, Guoheyuan
Finance Leasing Company Limited* (Bl1& RE AT EHBPRAF]) , Beijing Kaida
Junbo Technology Company Limited* (3t Zl KB ERHEZHRAF), Yunhan
(Shanghai) Investment Management Company Limited* (%) ( ti§)% & &
AR AF), Shandong Yaoqi Economic and Trade Company Limited* ( 1115
RE L EHBMAAF), Xiaxing (Shanghai) Investment Management Company
Limited* (388 ( -/8) %R &EELBM A A]), at consideration of RMBT.

On the even date, Ideal Honour Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as vendor entered into a sale and purchase agreement (“Sale and
Purchase Agreement Ill”) with, among others, Weihong International Energy
Technology (Beijing) Company Limited* (4 BABIEAERRIF (L) BERA
A]), an independent third party, as purchaser in respect of 95% issued share
capital of iFrontier LLC, a 95% owned subsidiary of the Company immediately
prior to the Sale and Purchase Agreement Ill, at consideration of RMB7
million.

Completion of the above disposals took place immediately after the execution
of the Sale and Purchase Agreement I, the Sale and Purchase Agreement II
and the Sale and Purchase Agreement Ill, being 24 July 2019.

Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 26 July 2019 for details
of the above disposals.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

R R e

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue all from car rental business amounted to HK$97,767,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019, representing an increase of
approximately HK$43,070,000 or 78.7% compared to the year ended 31
December 2018.

Cost of sales

The Group's cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018
were approximately HK$44,955,000 and HK$12,369,000 respectively,
representing an increase of approximately HK$32,586,000 or 263.4%
compared to the year ended 31 December 2018. The increase in cost of sales
due to an associate of the Group, TMTC Travel, turned into wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group by change of management controlling power in
August 2019. The books of accounts of the subsidiary has been consolidated
to the Group since September 2019.

Gross profit

The car rental business generated gross profit with 54.0% and 77.4% for the
year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 respectively. The changes of gross
margin results from consolidating TMTC Travel which has borne lower margin
but relatively massive gross income.

Other income

Other income of the Group for the year ended 2019 and 2018 were
approximately HK$500,000 and HK$15,619,000 respectively, representing
a decrease of approximately HK$15,119,000 or 96.8% compared to the
year ended 31 December 2018. The decrease was mainly due to gain on
derecognition of other payables of approximately HK$15,133,000 recorded in
the year 2018 only.

Administrative and other operating expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses for the year 2019 and 2018
were approximately HK$42,961,000 and HK$22,841,000 respectively,
representing an increase of HK$20,120,000 or 88.1%. The increase in
administrative and other operating expenses was attributed to the increase in
staff costs, vehicles repair and maintenances, legal and professional fees and
other operating expenses by consolidated TMTC Travel’s accounts.

Finance cost

Finance cost of the Group for the current year amounted to approximately
HK$38,299,000,
corresponding period in 2018, including banking charges, interest charged

represented a decrease of 26.0% compared to the

on borrowings, convertible bonds, non-convertible bonds, finance lease and
lease liabilities. Interest charged on convertible bonds was most significant
finance cost for the current, amounted to approximately HK$21,251,000 and
HK$33,631,000 for the year ended 2019 and 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (cont'd)

Profit or Loss attributable to the owners of the Company

As the loss for the year 2018 turning to profit for the year 2019, the TMTC
Travel contributes most to the Group. The profit attributable to the owners
of the Company and the profit for the year 2019 were approximately
HK$61,556,000 and HK$69,365,000 respectively. The loss attributable to
the owners of the Company and loss for the year 2018 were approximately
HK$14,673,000 and HK$15,308,000 respectively.

Non-current assets

As at 31 December 2019, the non-current assets were increased by
HK$84,374,000 from HK$168,491,000 as at 31 December of 2018 to
HK$252,865,000 as at 31 December 2019. The increase in non-current assets
was mainly attributable to the consolidation of TMTC Travel, which brought
property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$37,911,000, right-of
use assets of approximately HK$460,000, deferred tax asset of approximately
HK$8,286,000, intangible assets of approximately HK$329,000 and goodwill
of approximately HK$33,607,000.

Current assets

The current assets of the Group decreased from approximately
HK$196,795,000 as at 31 December 2018 to approximately HK$129,085,000
as at 31 December 2019 although TMTC Travel contribute the trade
receivable and bank and cash balances to the Group. The decrease of current
asset is mainly due to the decrease in paid in advance of TMTC Rental.

Liabilities

The total of non-current and current liabilities of the Group decreased from
approximately HK$964,674,000 as at 31 December 2018 to approximately
HK$945,724,000 as at 31 December 2019 which was mainly due to
the decrease in trade payable, finance lease payable and tax payable by
repayment during the year of 2019.

Net liabilities

As consequences, the Group recorded an increase in net current liabilities
from approximately HK$682,256,000 as at 31 December 2018 to
approximately HK$774,831,000 as at 31 December 2019, and a decrease
in net liabilities from approximately HK$599,388,000 as at 31 December
2018 to approximately HK$563,774,000 as at 31 December 2019. The
consolidation of TMTC Travel does improve the financial performance and
financial position of the Group.

BEEWED T

B 7 B B8 ()

AAREEANELEBER
AEEH-ZZ - \FHEBEE-_Z—-NFNE
F - EhRSEMERENEBRSZA - ARAERA
FEAR & A R = F — NFia Fl 9 B 4 A61,556,000
77T %69,365,0008 T c A A BB AEIEEE
=T N\FWEED AL R14,673,000% 7T &
15,308,0005 JT °

ERBEE

R-ZZE—NFEF+=-—A=+—8 FrRBHEEH=
Z—N\F+=-A=1+—H1168,491,000/% JT & hn
84,374,000/ JT £252,865,000/8 L ° JE i B & E
BMDEZHREHRBBEMIKEME E5EY
¥ BE&EFEL37,911,0008 T FREEELD
460,000 T ~ i 1E 71 76 & EE #78,286,000/% 7T ~ &
T2 & EE #9329,0007% 7T I 2 4933,607,000% 7T °

REBEE
BERSBHMREMNAEEERERE S RRIRIT
LR&#EF AEBRBEER T —)/\F+ A
=+ —HH4196,795,0008 TR AL E T —NF
+ = A=+—HK4129,085,000/ o m B E E
WO EEHRKEBHEENEMNFIBRD -

=L
AEEFRBEADEELEER - —/\Ft+=
A =+—H®#%964,674,0008TTHIE-ZE—N
F+ B =+—HHM4945,724,000E T Jh £ B
HRZZE-NFRERSHENESH EMNRE
FE A RSB IER DT -

BEFHE

At AEENRBABEFEHI -2 /\F+=A
=+ — B %682,256,000/8 TTIE NE —F — SL4F
+ZA=+—HMN4774,831,0008 0 & B EF
EH_Z— \F+-A=+—HM#S599,388,000
BTRLEZZE-AF+ZA=+—8HY
563,774,000/ 7T ° & Of K 5 38 B ik 0% 1 5 & AR
SENTHERR KT BRI -

BEREAERIERERAR 7
2019F F i



Management Discussion and Analysis

R R e

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2019, the issued share capital of the Company was
HK$3,178,754,000 divided into 6,411,770,500 shares. During the year ended
31 December 2019, the Group financed its operations by cash flow from
operating activities. As at 31 December 2019, the cash and bank balances of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$3,309,000 (31 December 2018:
HK$1,119,000).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, The Group had current assets of approximately
HK$129,085,000 (2018: HK$196,795,000), while its current liabilities were
approximately HK$903,916,000 (2018: HK$879,051,000). The current ratio
of the Group was approximately 0.1 times (2018: 0.2 times) and gearing ratio
(debts/total assets) was 184.61% (2018: 182.22%). As at 31 December 2019,
the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$3,309,000 (31
December 2018: HK$1,119,000).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the majority of the Group’s
income and expenses were denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
Up to 31 December 2019, the management of the Company was of the
opinion that the Group has insignificant exposure to foreign exchange risk. As
a result, the Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging against
fluctuation in foreign exchange for the year ended 31 December 2019.
Nevertheless, the management of the Company will closely monitor and from
time to time reassess the exchange risk exposures of the Group and enter into
non-speculative hedging arrangements if considered necessary.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 697 employees (including directors
(the “Directors”) of the Company) in Hong Kong and the PRC (31 December
2018: 779 employees). The Group continues to provide remuneration
packages to employees according to market practices, their experience and
performance. Remuneration policy is basically determined with reference
to individual performance as well as the financial results of the Group.
Remuneration to staff will be revised from time to time when warranted
considering the performances of staff. Other benefits include medical
insurance scheme and contribution of statutory mandatory provident fund
for the employees. The Group also adopted a share option scheme whereby
qualified participants may be granted options to acquire shares of the
Company (the “Shares”). There has been no major change in staff utilized
policies during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recorded borrowings of approximately
HK$166,367,000 (31 December 2018: HK$159,035,000), in which of
HK$9,498,000 is loan from bank and bear interest rate 5.15% per annum
with motor vehicles amounted to approximately HK$11,869,000 being
pledged. Other loans included in borrowings amounted to HK$156,869,000,
being unsecured and interest free. All borrowings are repayable on demand or
within the year.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group had no significant capital commitments outstanding as at 31
December 2019.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had contingent liabilities as possible
claims arising from indemnity related to a former subsidiary of approximately
HK$6,817,000 being equivalent to RMB6,100,000 (31 December 2018:
HK$6,920,000 being equivalent to RMB6,100,000). In the opinion of
management of the Company, it is not necessary for recording any provisions
for the above contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2019.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Trading in the Shares has been suspended since mid-2016. The Company fully
devoted in its resumption process since 2018. The Company submitted its
first resumption proposal to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) in June 2019, and a supplemental resumption proposal in
July 2019.

Despite the fulfilment by the Company of the resumption conditions set
by the Stock Exchange, as set out in the aforesaid resumption proposals,
the listing department of the Stock Exchange still recommended the listing
committee of the Stock Exchange to cancel the listing of the securities of
the Company, and the listing committee concurred on 29 August 2019. As
such, the Company decided to request for a review of such delisting decision
by the listing review committee of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Review
Committee™).

The Listing Review Committee conducted a hearing with the Company on
15 January 2020. Afterwards, the Listing Review Committee requested the
Company to provide further information to the Listing Review Committee by
making a further submission, and invited the Company for a further hearing.
The Company had submitted a further submission to the Listing Review
Committee as requested. Owning to the outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19)
pandemic, the further hearing was postponed. The Company shall publish
announcement for any update on the development of resumption progress as
and when appropriate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

OUTLOOK

The senior management of the Group believe challenges bringing
opportunities. Leading to overcome every difficulty is mission of each brilliant
decision maker in the Group. They are not for compliment but for the best
interests of every stakeholders, existing and potential investors of the Group.

Since the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, it is expected to have a significant
adverse impact on the global economy. Up to the date of this report, the
actual consequences to the Group’s business has not yet been concluded.
However, the financial position of the Group are not vitally hit by the
pandemic.

The Group consecutively and exclusively focuses on car rental business. As
commuter bus leasing market (the “Market”) in the PRC with a steady growth
in the past few years, the board (the “Board"”) of Directors expects the Market
would become stable after the pandemic and quarantine, especially the
Market located in Beijing and its suburban without mass transit alternatives.

As at the date of this report, the Group and all its personnel are stand fast
and remain at their post. Meanwhile everyone is ready to overcome and
solving the problems in the foreseeable future and even looking forward to
move in the opposite of worldwide economic downturn.

Actions taken by the Company to address relevant disclaimer
of opinion

The auditors of the Company, ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (”Auditor”),
had disclaimed their opinion on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the years ended 31 December 2019. The Company has taken
actions to address the relevant audit qualifications. Actions taken by the
Company to address relevant disclaimer of opinion in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out below:

a. Certain opening balances and corresponding figures

The Auditor’s opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “2018 Financial
Statements”), which forms the basis for the corresponding figures
presented in the current year's consolidated financial statements, was
disclaimed because of the significance of the possible effect of the
limitations on the scope of the audit and the material uncertainty in
relation to going concern, which relates to restatement of loss of the fuel
oil transactions in the year ended 31 December 2015, and was calculated
based on cash inflow and outflow of the transaction. Accordingly,
the Auditor was unable to form an opinion on the 2018 Financial
Statements.

1 O National United Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OUTLOOK (cont'd)
Actions taken by the Company to address relevant disclaimer
of opinion (cont’d)

a.

Certain opening balances and corresponding figures (cont’d)

This audit disclaimer will be removed in the year ending 31 December
2021 with opening and closing balances properly audited without
limitation of scope.

Limited accounting books and records of two subsidiaries - First
Concept Industrial Group Limited (“First Concept”) and iFrontier
LLC (“iFrontier”)

Due to the insufficiency of supporting documentation and explanations
for accounting books and records in respect of First Concept and
iFrontier for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, the Auditor
was unable to carry out audit procedures to satisfy itself as to whether
the certain income and expenses for the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2019 and the assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and
2019, and the segment information and other related disclosure notes
in relation to the Group, which included in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, have been accurately recorded and properly
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to the announcement of the Company dated 26 July 2019, First
Concept and iFrontier have been disposed to independent third parties of
the Company. As such, this disclaimer will be removed in the year ending
31 December 2021.

Loss on deconsolidation of the subsidiaries

As explained in note 2 of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019, certain subsidiaries of
the Company have been deconsolidated from the Group since 1 January
2016. No sufficient evidence has been provided to satisfy the Auditor
as to whether the Company had lost control of the aforesaid certain
subsidiaries on 1 January 2016 and throughout the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2019. Accordingly, the Auditor was unable to satisfy
itself as to the deconsolidated subsidiaries, as to the completeness of the
transactions of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2019 and the Group's financial position as at 31 December 2018.

Pursuant to the announcement of the Company dated 26 July 2019,
these subsidiaries with limited books and records have been disposed to
independent third parties of the Company. As such this disclaimer will be
removed in the year ending 31 December 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

OUTLOOK (cont’'d)
Actions taken by the Company to address relevant disclaimer
of opinion (cont'd)

d.

12

Borrowings

There was no sufficient evidence provided to satisfy the Auditor, in
relation to the existence, rights and obligations and valuation of the
borrowings of approximately HK$40,025,000 and HK$40,535,000 as at
31 December 2019 and 2018 respectively.

The Company will use proceeds from proposed subscription and
proposed open offer to repay such debt after debt obligation is verified.
This disclaimer will be removed upon repayment is made.

Going Concern

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net current liabilities and
net liabilities of approximately HK$774,831,000 and HK$563,774,000
respectively. These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 have been prepared on a going concern basis on the assumption
that the proposed restructuring of the Company will be successfully
completed, and that, following the restructuring, the Group will continue
to meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due in the foreseeable
future.

The Company will undergo (i) proposed subscription; (ii) proposed open
offer; and (iii) proposed debt restructuring, to reduce debt and raise
capital for expansion and for working capital. Upon completion of the
forgoing transactions, the disclaimer on going concern will be removed.

For identification purpose only
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ji Kaiping (“Mr. Ji"”), aged 57, has been appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 29 August 2017 and appointed as the Chairman
of the Board with effect from 29 November 2018. He is also an authorised
representative of the Company pursuant to Rule 3.05 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange, the
chairman of the nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) and director of various subsidiaries of the Group. He completed
the course of master's degree in business administration at International
Business Administration School of the University of International Business
and Economics in China from October 2003 to November 2005. He founded
TMTC Rental in 2006 and serves as its chairman. TMTC Rental has become an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company since August 2016 and Mr.
Ji'is responsible for the overall management of the actual operation of TMTC
Rental. Mr. Ji has extensive experience in management.

Mr. Guo Peiyuan (“Mr. Guo”), aged 49, has been appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 4 April 2018. He has almost 20 years'
experience in passenger transport management. From 1999 to 2004,
he worked in dt R EFIKR{TAH B MR A A as department manager, mainly
responsible for scheduling of sightseeing buses, business development
and customer relationship etc. From 2004 to 2006, Mr. Guo worked in it
RABIREETHE AR as deputy team leader, mainly responsible for fleet
management, business development and customer relationship etc. In 2006,
he founded TMTC Rental and currently serves as its general manager. In
2008, he acquired dt R RE K774t and changed its name to TMTC Travel.
Currently, Mr. Guo participants in management of TMTC Travel but does
not hold any interest in such company. TMTC Rental has become an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company since August 2016. TMTC Travel,
whose equity interest was owned as to 49% by TMTC Rental, has become a
subsidiary of the Group since 1 September 2019.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. An Jingwen (“Mr. An"), aged 64, has been appointed as a non-
executive Director with effect from 3 December 2018. He is also a member of
each of the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) and the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of the Company. He obtained
a Doctor's degree in Management Science and Engineering from China
University of Mining and Technology (Beijing) in 2010 and the qualification
certificate of independent director issued by the Shanghai Stock Exchange in
May 2012.

Directors’ Biographies
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Directors’ Biographies

EEERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (cont'd)

Mr. An is professor of school of management of China University of Mining
& Technology (Beijing) and tutor of postgraduate candidates. Mr. An has
over 30 years’ experience in teaching and research work and has extensive
experience in the coal industry and corporate training, as well as in the areas
of standardization and quality management. Mr. An is currently a member of
each of MEIER T XHEERTHEFMZEE (Coal Industry Technology
Committee of China National Coal Association) and FEI{Z &L HERFE R
[ERIE T Z BE (the Fifth Science and Technology Committee of China
National Institute of Standardization).

Mr. An served as an independent director of Pingdingshan Tianan Coal
Mining Co., Ltd. (stock code: 601666) from May 2013 to November 2019 and
an independent director of Liaoning Hongyang Energy Investment Co., Ltd.
from April 2014 to January 2016 (stock code: 600758), the shares of both
companies are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Wen (“Mr. Li"”), aged 64, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 4 April 2018, He is also the chairman
of the Audit Committee, and a member of each of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. He obtained bachelor of laws
from China University of Political Science and Law in 1983 and master of
laws from Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in 1986.
In 1986, he passed the Chinese National Lawyer’s Qualification examination
in Beijing and obtained legal professional qualification. From August 1986 to
December 1992, Mr. Li served as lawyer in /R BISE 2 F#H 4 and practiced
in law firms in Hong Kong, London and Los Angeles during the period from
June 1988 to January 1991. From December 1992 to June 1994, he founded
Beijing Zhong Lun Law Firm and served as principal. From June 1994 to
July 2007, Mr. Li founded Beijing Li Wen & Partners and served as principal.
Beijing Li Wen & Partners principally engaged in corporate, international
trading, real estate and finance. From July 2007 to January 2018, subsequent
to the change of name from Beijing Li Wen & Partners to it 5 {Z F {2 H1 =
5 Ffr, through merger with Beijing Hao Tian Law Office, Beijing Hylands Law
Firm had been established, and Mr. Li served as partner. From January 2018,
Beijing Hylands Law Firm, Beijing Anli Partners and Guangzhou Kunlun Law
Firm merged into b G X LB AZMEH AT and Mr. Li became partner of 1t
TOERZIBERM SR

1 4 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (cont’d)
Mr. Qiu Ke (“Mr. Qiu”), aged 49, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 1 June 2018. He is also the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee. He obtained a Bachelor’s degree
in economics from Capital University of Economics and Business (formerly
known as Beijing College of Economics) in 1994, and obtained a Master's
degree in business administration from Renmin University of China in 2003.
He also obtained a vocational education diploma in accounting studies in
Canada in 2004.

From 1995 to 2005, Mr. Qiu served as assistant analyst in credit card
department of Beijing Branch of China Construction Bank and has in-depth
knowledge and extensive experience in financial industry and products.
Thereafter, he has involved in works of accounting in Canada and has a
profound theoretical knowledge and extensive practical experience in all
aspects of international trading, management in accounting industry, various
types of financial statements, letter of credit and telegraphic transfer.

Ms. Chen Yen Yung (“Ms. Chen"), aged 48, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 17 April 2019. She is
also a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. She has over 20 years’ experience in the
accounting and finance field. She is a member of the CPA Australia and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (currently known
as the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants). Ms. Chen studied
in The Hong Kong Polytechnic University for higher certificate in accountancy
and holds a bachelor’'s degree in commerce (accounting) from the Curtin
University of Technology, Western Australia. From February 1995 to February
2001, she was employed by K.L. Lee & Partners CPA Limited (subsequently
known as KLL Associates CPA Ltd. and merged with BDO Limited in 2005), a
certified practicing accountancy firm in Hong Kong, with her last position as
an assistant manager. From February 2001 to June 2002, she was employed
by B&M Consultants Limited (currently known as BMI Consultants Limited),
a business consultancy company in Hong Kong, with her last position as
director. Ms. Chen is currently the company secretary of 3T 7k %2 @ 8 4% A%
&7 BBR A A (Zhejiang Yongan Rongtong Holdings Co., Ltd*) (stock code:
8211), a joint stock limited company incorporated in the PRC, whose H shares
are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. During the period from September
2018 to June 2019, she served as the independent non-executive director of
Mayer Holdings Limited (stock code: 1116), whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

* for identification purpose only
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Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019:

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the financial statements.

A detailed review on the Group's business performance and the material
factors underlying its financial position, as well as the development and likely
future prospects of the Group’s business are provided throughout this annual
report and in particular under the following separate sections:

(@) review of the Company's business and financial position, a discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication
of likely future developments in the Group’s business are shown in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual

report and note 36 to the financial statements;

(b) details of key performance indicators are shown in the sub-section
headed “Liquidity and Financial Resources” under the section headed

“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report;

(c) the Group's environmental policies and performance are shown in the
sub-section headed “Environmental Policies” below;

(d) the Group’s key relationships with employees, customers and suppliers
are shown in the sub-section headed "“Key Relationships” below; and

(e) the Group's compliance with the relevant laws and regulations are shown
in the sub-section headed “Compliance with Laws and Regulations”
below.

The discussions referred to in the above form part of this Directors’ Report.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2019, there are certain updates
in respect of the status of suspension of trading in Shares, further details
of which are shown in the sub-section headed “Events after the Reporting
Period” under the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of
this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW (cont'd)

Key Relationships

a) Employees
Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group and the
Group ensures all staff are reasonable remunerated and also continues
to improve and regularly review and update its policies on remuneration
and benefits, training, occupational health and safety.

b) Customers
The Group cherishes the mutually beneficial relationships with its
customers. The Group will provide the best services to its clients to
establish and consolidate the Group’s reputation in the industry.

¢) Suppliers
The Group is also dedicated to develop good relationship with its
suppliers as long-term business partners to ensure stability of the Group's
business. The Group reinforces business partnerships with its suppliers
by ongoing communication in a proactive and effective manner so as to
ensure quality and timely delivery.

Environmental Policies

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly corporation
that pays close attention to conserving natural resources. By speeding up the
transformation of development mode, adhering to safe, green and efficient
resources for greater quality, the Group aims to achieve green, circular and
low-carbon development.

The Group strives to minimize the environmental impact by saving electricity
and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. In addition,
the Group actively advocated a paperless office and encouraged the
employees to develop good habits, conserve resources and energy to build a
green and comfortable office environment.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Company has been listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange and
therefore the Company is subject to the governance of the Listing Rules
including the disclosure requirements, the corporate governance provisions
set out in Appendix 14 and the “comply and explain” provisions set out in
Appendix 27 therein. Under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), the
Company is required to maintain a register of substantial shareholders’ and
other persons’ interests in Shares and underlying shares of the Company and
a register of Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations and is obliged to disclose price sensitive or inside information as
soon as reasonably practicable.

Directors’ Report

EEEHRS

FEFHREBEE @)

FTEBE

a) ES
AHNEBEDAEEN—ERAEE AER®
REBETHREABREH MEERERE

HRtR AT Bo S EL R BN R AR M B 5 A B
BERZE-
b) EF

AEEDEREEFNEERER NEE
BREZEPREKERY MBRILZEEAE
ERITAREE-

o HRERF
AREETE N HEHERNRY RIFHRIED
BHEE BRAKREEBOREN AEHE
HEEBEBRRAMNER MREEHERS
MEBABRE BRREAEMRERE -

BBE
AEBRERURFREE BUEIRERAE
RoBEBMREREABR E522 RALA
BREBRRANTE ARBEEHEERKE BERR
AR -

AEEREBHEENRBBRAEHERNE
MM ERER S8REERFOTZE - BIN
AEERBREEANAE THEAREBBERI
BB HRERRER AR IRRKE B TIE

B

BIEERER
ARBTIRERZPrER L B ARRAEST L
MRAKERRTE BREETMEIAFRNRER
E R EE R R SCOA K M 8527 P & [ <7 5h
R G -REFHFRPEGRD ([FHRAEEK
) K Téﬁﬁﬁ—fﬁixﬂxiﬁﬁi\@/\iﬁf\ﬁ
RERG KRR 2 EaEM AREERS
THRABRAR TIE*EH?#&IZH%’JF**HE@W%

MEHz#Em kxR R jfZEEAEEimtﬂfTﬁ
E@%&EW%’R&E@E% REMIARHER -
BIRE A

DRIERBR AR
2019F F i 1 7



Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW (cont’d)
Compliance with laws and regulations (cont’d)

As the Company is incorporated in Hong Kong, it is subject to various laws
and regulations including Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the laws of
Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), Business Registration Ordinance
(Cap. 310 of the laws of Hong Kong), Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112 of
the laws of Hong Kong) and Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the laws of
Hong Kong).

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC. Our establishment and operations accordingly shall comply
with all PRC laws and applicable laws in the jurisdictions where we have
operations. To the best of Directors’ knowledge, information and belief,
during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Group complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC and Hong Kong.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (“Articles”) and
subject to the provisions of the Companies Ordinance, every Director or
other officer of the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all liabilities which he may incur in or about the execution
and discharge of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto,
provided that such Article shall only have effect in so far as its provisions are
not avoided by the Companies Ordinance. The Company did not arrange
appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The name of all the directors who have served on the subsidiaries of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of
this annual report are available on the website of the Company.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 52. The Board does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2019.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out on page 120.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2019, the issued share capital of the Company was
HK$3,178,754,000 divided into 6,411,770,500 shares. There was no change
in the Group's capital structure during the year ended 31 December 2019.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND NON-CONVERTIBLE
BONDS

Details of the convertible bonds and non-convertible bonds issued by
the Company are set out in notes 26 and 27 to the financial statements
respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws of
Hong Kong.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or its
subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2019.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 30(b) to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE
As at 31 December 2019, the Company did not have any distributable
reserve.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for approximately 54% of the total sales and sales to
the largest customer included therein accounted for approximately 26%.
Suppliers of goods and services of car rental business which are freely
available from a range of suppliers, gasoline stations, at similar prices and
which are freely available. Therefore the disclosure of the top five suppliers
are excluded.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any shareholders
of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued Shares) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Ji Kaiping (Chairman)

Mr. Guo Peiyuan

Non-executive Director
Mr. An Jingwen

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Wen

Mr. Qiu Ke

Ms. Chen Yen Yung (appointed on 17 April 2019)
ZO National United Resources Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS (cont'd)

In accordance with Article 71 of the Articles, the Board may, at any time, and
from time to time, appoint any person to be a Director, either to fill a casual
vacancy or by way of addition to their number. Any Director so appointed
by the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company, and shall then be eligible for re-appointment.

Mr. Ji Kaiping, Mr. Guo Peiyuan, Mr. An Jingwen, Mr. Li Wen, Mr. Qiu Ke
and Ms. Chen Yen Yung will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“2020 AGM").

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2020 AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
None of the Directors nor their respective associates were interested in any
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2019
and up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 13 to 15 to this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangements or contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and
in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during the year ended 31
December 2019.
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DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, and underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in the
Model Code, were as follows:

EERFETBRAERA AT HNHEAM
BoEE RGO HERORES 28
Eﬁ&/ﬁ)s

n)

RZE—NF+ZA=+—H ESERARAEE
THABRAR RS HEARE A (% B FH L
EEBIBEXVER) Bl - BERG RESFHEED R
ABRRBIRIEHF R AE GO E352G6EFENE
oMt R ETFRIFTE 2 EBITAESET
FBHER P ZIZESTRINE R RQE] R A2 s
RABIT

Long Position in the Shares RGO ZFR
Approximate
percentage of
Number of interest in
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest Shares the Company
EERAREREZ
EEnE B REMtE RO BE BRBESL
Ji Kaiping Beneficial owner 11,000,000,000 171.56%
o EmfiB A (Note 1)
(KzET)
Guo Peiyuan Beneficial owner 10,000,000,000 155.96%
Ellpe3 5 BERfERA (Note 2)
(KzE2)
Notes: Bt

1. As at 31 December 2019, the subscription of 11,000,000,000 Shares pursuant to
the legally binding agreement in respect of the subscription of new Shares by Mr. Ji
Kaiping has not yet been completed. Please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 31 July 2019 for details of the said share subscription.

2. As at 31 December 2019, the subscription of 10,000,000,000 Shares pursuant
to the legally binding agreement in respect of the subscription of new Shares
by Mr. Guo Peiyuan has not yet been completed. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 31 July 2019 for details of the said share subscription.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (cont’d)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors and/
or chief executive of the Company nor their associates had or was deemed
to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which each of them has
taken or deemed to have taken under the SFO), or which would be required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register required to
be kept therein or which would be required, pursuant to the Model Code, to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2019 were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debenture of
the Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an extraordinary general meeting
of the Company held on 14 December 2012, a share option scheme of
the Company (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company.
The Share Option Scheme, subject to earlier termination by the Company
in general meeting, will remain in force for a period of ten years from its
effective date and will expire on 13 December 2022.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (cont'd)

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or reward
to eligible participants for their contribution, and continuing efforts to
promote the interests of the Company. The Board considers that the Share
Option Scheme is in the interests of the Company and the shareholders of
the Company as a whole as it provides the Company with more flexibility
in providing incentives to those eligible participants by way of granting of
options. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the Board may grant options
to any eligible participants who has contributed or may contribute to the
development and growth of the Group or any entity in which the Group
holds an equity interest to subscribe for the Shares at any price which shall
be not less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the date on which an offer for the grant of the options; and (ii) the average
of the closing prices of the Shares as shown in the daily quotations sheets of
the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
on which an offer for the grant of the options. The options may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time
during the period to be determined by the Board at its absolute discretion
and notified by the Board to each grantee as being the period during which
options may be exercised and in any event, such period shall not be longer
than 10 years from the date upon which any particular option is granted in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within twenty business
days from the offer date. The amount payable by the grantee in respect of
the acceptance of the offer is HK$10. The total number of Shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible person
under the Share Option Scheme in any twelve months period must not exceed
1% of the Shares in issue at the date of such grant unless approved by the
shareholders in general meeting.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue
as at its adoption date or the date of approval by the shareholders in general
meeting where the limit is refreshed. At the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 1 June 2015 (the “2015 AGM"), an ordinary resolution
approving the refreshment of the scheme limit and authorizing the Directors
to grant share options under the Share Option Scheme up to the refreshed
limit (i.e. 372,096,700 Shares, representing 10% of the total number of
Shares in issue as at the date of 2015 AGM) was passed. As such, the total
number of Shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was
372,096,700 Shares, representing approximately 5.8% of the Shares in issue
as at the date of this annual report.

No option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year ended
31 December 2019. The Company had no share options outstanding at the
beginning and end of the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

At 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of every person,
other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, in the Shares and
underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the

Company under section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:
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Approximately
Number of percentage of
Capacity and Long position/ Number of underlying  total number of
Name Nature of interest short position Shares held shares held Shares in issue
HERTRHBE
“E/E28 B RERME #R/ %R FEROGEE  HERABEROHA BREI T
Nation Spirit Limited (Note 1) Beneficial Owner Long position - 933,333,333 14.56%
Nation Spirit Limited ( Bi#zE1) EREEA e
Gu Baorong (Note 1) Interest of a controlled Long position - 933,333,333 14.56%
corporation
BER (M) R EE S ER e
Yang Fan Beneficial Owner Long position 810,759,648 - 12.64%
BR EHERAA e
Upper Target Limited (Note 2) Beneficial Owner Long position 596,900,000 - 9.31%
HEARRA (FE2) EREBA e
Liu Zidong (Note 2) Interest of a controlled Long position 596,900,000 - 9.31%
corporation
27 (M) ZEHEE S ER e
Beneficial Owner Long position 8,150,000 - 0.13%
BEREBA e
Elite Fortune Global Limited (Note 3)  Beneficial Owner Long position 585,533,845 - 9.13%
FERBARRAA (f1523) EREBA e
Wang Yi (Note 3) Interest of a controlled Long position 585,533,845 - 9.13%
corporation
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (cont’d)

Notes:

1. These interests represent the number of underlying shares of the Company
held includes the maximum number of conversion shares to be issued upon full
exercise of the conversion rights attaching to (i) convertible bonds in the principal
amount of HK$140 million issued by the Company; and (ii) convertible bonds in
an aggregate principal amount of HK$420 million (the “CB") to be issued by the
Company to the vendors as partial settlement of the consideration pursuant to the
sale and purchase agreement dated 15 January 2016 (“S&P Agreement”).

Based on the notice of disclosure of interest of Nation Spirit Limited and Gu
Baorong each filed with the Stock Exchange on 13 May 2016, these underlying
shares are held by Nation Spirit Limited, which is wholly-owned by Gu Baorong.
Under Part XV of the SFO, Gu Baorong is interested in these 933,333,333
underlying shares in which Nation Spirit Limited is interested.

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 23 July 2019, no CB was
issued pursuant to the terms of the S&P Agreement. Accordingly, both Nation Spirit
Limited and Gu Baorong had ceased to be interested in 700,000,000 underlying
shares to be issued upon conversion of the CB.

Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 15 January 2016, 30 March
2016, 31 May 2016, 24 June 2016, 18 July 2016, 31 August 2016, 14 February
2017, 22 February 2017 and 23 July 2019, and the Company's circular dated 30
June 2016.

2. Based on the notice of disclosure of interest of Upper Target Limited and Liu Zidong
each filed with the Stock Exchange on 12 May 2016, these Shares are held by
Upper Target Limited, which is wholly-owned by Liu Zidong. Under Part XV of the
SFO, Liu Zidong is interested in these 596,900,000 Shares in which Upper Target
Limited is interested.

3. Based on the notice of disclosure of interest of Elite Fortune Global Limited and
Wang Yi each filed with the Stock Exchange on 10 March 2016, these Shares are
held by Elite Fortune Global Limited, which is wholly-owned by Wang Yi. Under Part
XV of the SFO, Wang Yi is interested in these 585,533,845 Shares in which Elite
Fortune Global Limited is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no person had registered
an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 336 of the
SFO.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements. The Directors’ remunerations, bonuses and other compensation
are recommended by the Remuneration Committee and determined by the
Board with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and the Group’s
performance and results.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had not entered into
any transactions which constituted non-exempt connected transactions or
non-exempt continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had entered into
certain transactions with parties regarded as “related parties” under the
applicable accounting standards but these transactions were not regarded
as connected transactions or continuing connected transactions under
the Listing Rules or were exempt from reporting, announcement and
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules. Details of these
related party transactions are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, throughout the year of 2019 and as at the date
of this annual report, there is sufficient public float by not less than 25% of
the Company’s issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee currently comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Wen (as the
chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Qiu Ke and Ms. Chen Yen Yung, and
one non-executive Director, namely Mr. An Jingwen.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the review and
supervision of the Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control systems, and review of the Group's financial information. The
Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITOR

There was no change in auditor during the preceding three years from the
date of this report. A resolution will be submitted to the 2020 AGM to re-
appoint ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Ji Kaiping
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 13 July 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES TEERER

The Board and the management are committed to maintaining and ensuring EES R EEELALTHABFTIRESEEZNET
high standards of corporate governance as good corporate governance can JA/KF - BREARITDEE A EEDERE 2T
safeguard the interests of all shareholders and enhance corporate value. S REANEBME - ARATIDEMNDEEZTESFAE
The Company has adopted the CG Code as its own code of corporate AHAHZMEEATE -HE-ZZ—NE+A
governance. During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company was in  =+—H | FE AR A2 EBTOES AT
compliance with the relevant code provisions set out in the CG Code except  Z #AF8 <7 BIESC > M T ATl 2 1R BE1S SUBR 4b o
for the deviations explained below.

The code

provisions Reasons for the non-compliance and improvement actions took or to be taken

<F Bl 3 TERERARERABERNZRENTDH

A.1.8 As it took time for the Company to solicit a suitable insurer at reasonable commercial terms and conditions,
the Company did not arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against its Directors for
the year ended 31 December 2019.
ARARAIFEFHUNERNEEERRNGEHEREENRRAR ABE-_T-AF+-_A=+—H
IEFE AR T*ﬁﬁ%$%i¢ﬁ“kﬁ 2R

A2.1 The Company has not appointed a chief executive officer and role and functions of chief executive officer
have been performed by all the executive Directors collectively. The Board believes that this arrangement
enables the Company to make and implement decisions promptly, and thus achieve the Company'’s objectives
effectively and efficiently in response to the changing environment. The Board will continuously assess
whether any changes are necessary.
ARNRUEEETRAHE - BRTREH 2 ACKBAEAEBATEFAART EF2HE LLHER

%%Lﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁi“'ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&%ﬁﬂ?ﬁﬁ@i%ﬁﬁ NEH B EMRE - EFER K
BEEEHEEFHEME
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s strategic planning and
development, and for determining the objectives, strategic and policies of the
Group while delegating day-to-day operations of the Group to management.
Besides, each member of the Board is expected to make a full and active
contribution to the Board's affairs and ensure that the Board acts in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board currently comprises six
members including, Mr. Ji Kaiping (Chairman) and Mr. Guo Peiyuan as
executive Directors, Mr. An Jingwen as non-executive Director and Mr. Li
Wen, Mr. Qiu Ke and Ms. Chen Yen Yung as independent non-executive
Directors. One of the three independent non-executive Directors possesses
appropriate professional accounting qualifications and financial management
expertise, which complies with the requirement of the Listing Rules. Details of
their respective experiences and qualifications are included in the “Directors’
Biographies” section of this annual report.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
on 28 March 2014 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board. The Company recognizes that increasing diversity at the Board
level will support the attainment of the Company's strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Company will also
take into consideration its own business model and specific needs from time
to time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.

The Board delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity Policy to the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will discuss and adopt
the above measurements when it reviewed the composition of the Board.
After assessing the suitability of the Directors’ skills and experience to the
Company’s business, the Nomination Committee considered that the existing
Board were suitably qualified with professional backgrounds and/or equipped
with extensive expertise for the purposes of providing direction to and
oversight of the Group’s strategic and business in achieving its objectives.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d)
The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.

As disclosed in the paragraph headed “Corporate Governance Practices”
above, the Company did not arrange appropriate directors’ and officers’
liabilities insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

The independent non-executive Directors ensure the Board accounts for the
interests of all shareholders and that all issues are considered in an objective
manner. The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors as regards their independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence
and concluded that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships among the members of the Board. All
of them are free to exercise their individual judgment.

NON-COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 3.10(1), 3.10(2) AND
3.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

Following the resignation of Mr. Zhou Guangguo as independent non-
executive Director on 29 August 2017, the Company only had two
independent non-executive Directors and two members of the Audit
Committee, thus the number of which falls below the minimum number
required under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

Following the resignation of Ms. Zhou Zhan as independent non-executive
Director on 20 October 2017, the Company failed to comply with Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules with regard to at least one of the independent
non-executive Directors must have appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Upon the appointment of Ms. Chen Yen Yung, who has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise, as independent non-executive Director on 17 April 2019, the
number of independent non-executive Directors had satisfied the minimum
number required under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules. The Company
also met the requirement set out in Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules with
regard to at least one of the independent non-executive Directors must have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. In addition, the Company had complied with the
requirements set out under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules with regard to the
composition of the Audit Committee.
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DIRECTORS’' CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, the Directors should
participate in appropriate continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. All Directors are encouraged
to attend relevant training courses to ensure that they are fully aware of
the responsibilities and obligations of directors under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development and
provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31 December
2019 to the Company. The Company has also continuously updated Directors
on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. Training record of each Directors
received for the year ended 31 December 2019 is summarised below:
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Training
Received
EZ I
Notes
M5
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Ji Kaiping (Chairman) WHEFRE (FE) (1
Mr. Guo Peiyuan PIFIR ST E (1)
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. An Jingwen TREXEE (1)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYkHTES
Mr. Li Wen FXRAE (1)
Mr. Qiu Ke 5 A4 (1)
Ms. Chen Yen Yung PRIEELZ + (2)

Notes:

(1) Reading articles, training materials and updates as regards legal and regulatory
changes and matters of relevance to the Directors in the discharge of their duties.

(2) Attending training courses/seminars/conferences on topics relating to directors’
duties and the Listing Rules.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETING

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board has held 8 meetings.
The Board also passed resolutions by way of written resolutions. The
attendance of the Directors to these Board meetings is set out in the below
section headed “Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.

The company secretary of the Company assists the chairman of each meeting
in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. The company secretary of the Company also keeps
detailed minutes of each meeting, which are available to all the Directors
for inspection. Draft of Board minutes are circulated to all Directors for their
comments and approved as soon as practicable after the Board meetings.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information, and they can
ask for further information or retain independent professional advisors if
necessary. They also have unrestricted access to the advice and service of
the company secretary of the Company, who is responsible for providing the
Directors with board papers and related materials and ensuring that board
procedures are followed.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company did not hold any
general meeting.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder
of the Company or Director arise, the matter will be discussed in a physical
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written resolutions. Independent
non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest should present at meeting
dealing with conflict issues. Board committees of the Company, including the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, all
follow the applicable practices and procedures used in Board meetings for
committee meetings.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The Company has not appointed a chief executive officer
and role and functions of chief executive officer have been performed by all
the executive Directors collectively. The Board believes that this arrangement
enables the Company to make and implement decisions promptly, and thus
achieve the Company's objectives effectively and efficiently in response to
the changing environment. The Board will continuously assess whether any
changes are necessary.
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DIRECTORS’' TERM OF APPOINTMENT AND RE-
ELECTION

In accordance with Article 72(1) of the Articles, the Directors shall be elected
or replaced by the Company in general meeting and shall serve a term of
office of three years. A Director may serve consecutive terms if re-elected by
the Company in general meeting upon the expiration of his term. Article 71
of the Articles provides that Directors appointed either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company, and shall then be eligible for re-
appointment.

The non-executive Director and all independent non-executive Directors are
appointed for an initial term of one year, which is automatically renewable
for successive term of one year each commencing from the expiry of the then
current term of appointment, subject to termination by either party by serving
prior notice to the other party no less than one month’s notice in writing.
Each of such appointments is subject to the rotation and retirement provisions
in the Articles.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct for
securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of
the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
required standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2019.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct for
securities transactions by employees of the Company who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company. No incident
of non-compliance of the Model Code by the relevant employees of the
Company was noted by the Company during the year ended 31 December
2019.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The current Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price sensitive
announcements, inside information announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 48 to 51.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 20 December 2005 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code which are
available on the respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
formulation of the remuneration policy, review and recommending to the
Board the annual remuneration policy of the Directors and members of senior
management. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the approach made
under B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

Meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall be held at least once a year
and as and when required. The Remuneration Committee currently comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Qiu Ke (as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Li Wen and Ms. Chen Yen
Yung and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. An Jingwen.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration Committee has
held 2 meetings, during which the following works were performed:—

e considered the remuneration package for the proposed independent
non-executive Director and recommended to the Board; and

e made recommendations to the Board on salary adjustment proposals
for the Directors and the assistant to the Board, and granting of
discretionary bonus to executive Directors.

The attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee to these
Remuneration Committee meetings is set out in the below section headed
“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.

The remuneration of the senior management (comprising Directors) of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019, by band is set out below:
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Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7t £2,000,000/%8 7T 2

Further details of the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31
December 2019 are disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements contained
in this annual report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 7 July 2008 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code which are available on
the respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited to
skills, experience and background, geographical and industry experience,
ethnicity, gender, knowledge and length of service) of the Board; to
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorship; and to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors;
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing such policy.

and to review the Board Diversity Policy and the

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without undue
disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure
for selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors, as well as plans
in place for orderly succession (if considered necessary), including periodical
review of such plans. The appointment of a new Director (to be an additional
director or fill a casual vacancy as and when it arises) or any re-appointment
of Directors is a matter for decision by the Board upon the recommendation
of the proposed candidate by the Nomination Committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified
shall be his ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well as the effective
carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities which, in particular, are set
out as follows:—

e  participating in Board meetings to bring an independent judgment on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standards of conducts;

e taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;
e serving on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and

the Nomination Committee (in the case of candidate for non-executive
Director) and other relevant Board committees, if invited,;
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (cont'd)

e bringing a range of business and financial experience to the Board,
giving the Board and any committees on which he serves the benefit
of his skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and qualifications and
diversity through attendance and participation in the Board/committee
meetings;

e scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate
goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of performance;

e ensuring the committee on which he serves to perform their powers and
functions conferred on them by the Board; and

e conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by legislation or
the Listing Rules, where appropriate.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, his independence shall be assessed in accordance with, among other
things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to
any amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange from time to time.
Where applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education, qualifications and
experience shall also be evaluated to consider whether he has the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise for filling the office of an independent non-executive Director with
such qualifications or expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

Meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be held at least once a year
and as and when required. The Nomination Committee currently comprises
one executive Director, namely Ji Kaiping (as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee) and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li
Wen, Mr. Qiu Ke and Ms. Chen Yen Yung.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (cont'd)
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination Committee has
held 2 meetings, during which the following works were performed:—

e reviewed the composition, size and structure of the Board;

e assessed the independence of each independent non-executive Director;
and

e made recommendation of new Director candidate for the Board’s
approval.

The attendance of the members of the Nomination Committee to these
Nomination Committee meetings is set out in the below section headed
“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has had the Audit Committee since 2004 with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code which are available on the
respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include reviewing and
supervising the Group's financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control systems, reviewing the Group's financial information, and
making recommendations to the Board.

Meetings of the Audit Committee shall be held at least twice a year and
as and when required. The Audit Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Wen (as the chairman
of the Audit Committee), Mr. Qiu Ke and Ms. Chen Yen Yung and one non-
executive Director, namely Mr. An Jingwen.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee has held 4
meetings, during which the following works were performed:—

e reviewed the interim financial statements of the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 2016, 2017 and 2018, the annual financial
statements for the years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018,
and the related results announcements, documents and other matters or
issues raised by the Company’s auditor;

e reviewed the report on risk management and internal control systems
of the Group for the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 March 2019
prepared by Netis Advisory Limited, the external internal control adviser
of the Company, and make recommendation to the Board; and
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (cont’d)

e reviewed the engagement of ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited in respect
of the agree-upon procedures for the interim results announcement for
the six months ended 30 June 2019 and made recommendation to the
Board.

The attendance of the members of the Audit Committee to these Audit
Committee meetings is set out in the below section headed “Attendance at
Board and Board Committee Meetings”.

ATTENDANCE AT BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE
MEETINGS

Attendance of each Director at all the Board meetings and Board Committee
meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out as follows:

EZEEE @)

. EMRHE-T-AEAA=THILAEAZ
hEEE NG NERFH R ERE G
BRERAT ZRER  THEERIRHE

%E@ﬁk,\ﬁdf%% % x%@@mﬁ’]’l%iﬁ

‘ //E“_

ESENESZEEERHERR

EEEHRERBE_ZE-NAF+-_A=1+—HL
FERTHNMEEZS SR NEZZES AN
BREFIMT

Remuneration = Nomination Audit
Board Committee Committee Committee
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
FHzEe REZEE ENZERE
ExgeR g3 g3 =f |
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Ji Kaiping (Chairman) BRTEE(ZE) 7/8 - 212 -
Mr. Guo Peiyuan PEERLE 8/8 - - -
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Mr. An Jingwen RERNEE 6/3 12 - 2/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHTEE
Mr. Li Wen FNRE 7/8 12 12 4/4
Mr. Qiu Ke B4 8/8 212 212 3/4
Ms. Chen Yen Yung (Note) BR#EE L+ (M) 4/5 n n 4/4
(appointed on 17 April 2019) (RZZE-NAFHNA+LEA
BZEE)

Note: Ms. Chen Yen Yung has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, the members of the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Audit Committee with effect from 17 April 2019. Her
attendance above were stated by reference to the number of Board meetings and

Board committee meetings since then.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting shareholders’
expectations and prudent capital management with a sustainable dividend
policy. The Company’s dividend policy aims to allow shareholders of the
Company to participate in the Company's profit and for the Company to
retain adequate reserves for the Group's future growth. In proposing any
dividend payout, the Company would consider various factors including but
not limited to the Group's overall results of operation, financial condition,
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements, liquidity
position, future expansion plans, general economic conditions, business
cycle of the Group's business and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and position of the
Group. Any declaration and payment as well as the amount of the dividends
will be subject to any restrictions under all applicable requirements under the
Companies Ordinance, the Articles, the Listing Rules and any other applicable
laws and regulations. The Company does not have any predetermined
dividend distribution proportion or distribution ratio. Any future declarations
of dividends may or may not reflect the Company’s historical declarations of
dividends and will be at the absolute discretion of the Directors.

The Board will continually review the dividend policy and reserves the right in
its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or cancel the
dividend policy at any time, and the dividend policy shall in no way constitute
a legally binding commitment by the Company that dividends will be paid in
any particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a
dividend at any time or from time to time.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration paid/payable to
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, the auditor of the Company, is set out below:
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Fee paid/payable

Bt E A
HK$
o
Audit services: ERR
Audit of the financial statements FEIZM B HRE 800,000
Non-audit services: FEXRT
Interim report engagement PHEIRELE 180,000
Review profit forecast 2 B s A1 TR R 180,000
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Audit Committee is responsible for the review of the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report, and make recommendation to the Board, while Board is also
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties as set out below:

(a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the Company;

(c) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees of the Company and Directors;
and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report by reference to the recommendation
of the Audit Committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board’s Responsibilities for the Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and oversees such systems on an ongoing
basis, while ensuring a review of the effectiveness of these systems of the
Group is conducted at least annually. The scope of such review covers all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.
The Group's risk management and internal control systems are designed to
managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of
risk management and internal control to the Audit Committee, and the
management has provided a confirmation to the Audit Committee and the
Board on the effectiveness of these systems for the year ended 31 December
2019.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (cont'd) FE[EEEF A IPEIE (@)

Main Features of the Risk Management System

EREEAGNEERR

The Company recognises that good risk management is essential for the long- AR GFRE REWEKREEY LRSS ELE
term and sustainable growth of a business. The Group’s risk management REIFEEZ - AEENERBEERELEERNE S
structure and the major responsibilities of each role of the structure are EHFEREMMLOT :

summarized below:

Board Audit Management Risk
sEe # Committee # Migi Owners
& N o =18 [
h ERELEE . FEaEA
Role Major Responsibilities
EEE TERE
Board — determines the business strategies and objectives of the Group, and evaluates and determines the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives;
- - EEAEEzEBEREAR RARTETASER/ERKRBESABEEMANRRMEE KE
g

— oversees management in the design, implement and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems;
- EBREREHAREENIAMBETRAGOR B REE:

— oversees the Group's risk management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis and
ensures the Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems;

- FEZEASENEREEMABEZERGLBRARFBLLEFSHELEINEREE LA

BPEIE R
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TREERKRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (cont'd) EMEER KNIPEE (&)
Main Features of the Risk Management System (cont’d) EREERANETERSE (&)

Role
EEE

Major Responsibilities

TERE

Audit Committee

RS

\

W
il
S

Management

ERE

Risk Owners
EpEEaEA

reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems at least
annually, and such review should cover all material controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls;
ELEFRIAEERBREELANSEZRFNBRELRZERNEEEMEERNEL  BIEH
BEERSRER:

reviews the emerging risks of the Group annually, and the risk management and the internal
controls in place to address those risks;
BEEHAKENEENRR WEBERREE RAMBEZERAZEER

discusses the risk management and internal control systems with management of the Group to
ensure that the management of the Group has performed its duty to have an effective systems. The
discussion should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function and to rectify
any weaknesses that may be revealed from time to time;
HASEEEENAEREERADELRRS UBERASEEEEEBTEBREEVARES -
ERANREAEASENGH AV BRRBE I A ER ETERRER BIREREHAESE
B TR I AY I A] g IR A (£ ] 5578

considers major investigation findings on risk management and internal control matters as delegated
by the Board or on its own initiative and the Group’s management’s response to these findings;
EEEZGNRRIETEH ZEFUERBEERANNEZSTENEZFIETHERUARLTEEEREHZ
EERZOE:

designs, implements and ongoing assesses the Group's risk management and internal control
systems;
Bt B RFETEAEENRRERERABEZERR:

gives prompt responses to, and follow up the findings on risk management and internal control
matters as delegated by the Board, on Audit Committee’s initiative or raised by the external risk
management and internal control review advisor(s);

BEFENER BERZESTIHIIITERERERALEERANERIEL  HEARER AN E
EEE R AR N[O 8 R

provides confirmation to the Board and the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems;

MEEGRERZEERARREERANMEZERSMA RN

ultimately accountable for ensuring the risk is managed appropriately; and
REBERREARGIEEEE &

responsible for, or oversight of, activities to manage each identified risk.
EESEEEESDHAERSNES -

In addition, the Company engaged Netis Advisory Limited as its internal i 4h R AT ZEELASEE AR AT AHE A ZES 2
control adviser to conduct a review on the effectiveness of the risk  EEf U AEEREKRESERNTER LGNS
management and internal control systems of the Group and provide iR EADTIEEES-

recommendations to the Company.

42 National United Resources Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2019



Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (cont'd) [E & & T8 % ;A 2B BE 428 (@)

Main Features of the Internal Control System ABEZERENETERSY

The Company has in place an internal control system which enables the AATIEEHALER RS  ZXMBALEBEE
Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and efficiency of REBELYEAEMLSN BB RETEREESEA
operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable A X#EMBEIZE - ZIELROBROT :

laws and regulations. The components of the framework are shown as follow:

Control Environment

o

R

He
xH

b

EE

Risk Assessment

B &F fil

Control Activities

EEEY

Information and
Communication

B RER
Monitoring

R

a set of standards, processes and structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal control
across the Group.

—ERETASENMEERHEERNLERN BFERE-

a dynamic and iterative process for identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group's objectives,
forming a basis for determining how risks should be managed.

—EBRERZERE  LHEH R ERAEE B ROE LR - TR E A E 5 K& -

actions established by policies and procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are carried out.

BREBERRNEFEITEY UERATEREERFREEKBENREBRMAIELNER-

internal and external communication to provide the Group with the information needed to carry out
day-to-day controls.

AEMRIBBBARAEEIRMHETREEZEMFTHROER -

ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain whether each components of internal control is
present and functioning.

FERERFEAEBAMBEZENETRREFAELEEES-

Process used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage Significant Risks &3 R EBEEXRARFAEANER

Identification

#3

Evaluation

#Fi

Management

IR

identify ownership of risks, business objectives and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives.

HAERABEA EBERRAUEZERSERORR-

analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

DMERKAEELRZELREFERRAES -

consider the risk responses, ensure effective communication with the Board in respect of the risks
and on-going monitor the residual risks

ZEREREY HRAREESGRARETAEREBRSELERBRAR -
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (cont'd)
Process used to Review the Effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems and to Resolve
Material Internal Control Defects

Risk assessment report and internal control review report are submitted
to the Audit Committee and the Board annually. The Board, through the
Audit Committee, had perform a review on the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, including, but not limited
to, (i) the changes, in the nature and extent of significant risks and the
Company’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the external
environment, (ii) the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring
of risks and of the internal control systems, (iii) the extent and frequency of
communication of monitoring results to the Audit Committee and the Board
which enables them to assess control of the Company and the effectiveness
of risk management, (iv) significant control failings or weaknesses that have
been identified, and (v) the effectiveness of the Company’s processes for
financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance, and considered that the
risk management and internal control systems were effective and adequate
for the year ended 31 December 2019. No significant areas of concern
that might affect the financial, operational, compliance controls, and risk
management functions of the Group were identified. The scope of such
review covers the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff
of the Group's accounting and financial reporting functions and their attitude
against internal control of the Group. The Board will continue to work with
the Management to discuss and follow-up on the status of remediation of
the internal control weaknesses and to monitor the risks of the Group in the
coming years.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (cont'd)
Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of the relevant
obligations under the SFO and the Listing Rules. Certain reasonable measures
have been taken from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to
prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group, which
include:

— access of inside information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis;

— transmission of inside information in electronic form should be
password-protected;

—  prohibit employees to discuss inside information in public area;

— code names are assigned to confidential projects so that any reference
to them would not be linked to the projects themselves to minimize
possibilities of unintentional leakage;

— trainings or briefings are provided to employees who will be in
possession of inside information to ensure that they are fully conversant
with their obligations to preserve confidentiality with reasonable care;

—  confidentiality agreements are in place before the Group enters into
significant negotiations; and

- officers and employees other than the designated representative
are prohibited to speak externally on behalf of the Company when
communicating with external parties such as the media, analysts or
investors.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board
has reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is of the view
that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the
Group, as opposed to diverting resources to establish a separate internal
audit department, it would be more cost effective to appoint external
independent professionals to perform independent review of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. Nevertheless, the Board will continue to review at least annually the
need for an internal audit department.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial services
provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1"), to provide compliance
and full range of company secretarial services to the Group in order to assist
the Group to cope with the changing regulatory environment and to suit
difference commercial needs.

Ms. Chan Pui Shan, Bessie (“"Ms. Chan"), the representative of Uni-1, has
been appointed as the company secretary of the Company with effect from
4 April 2018. Her primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr.
Jason Shi, the assistant to the Board.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, Ms. Chan has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

THE SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS TO CONVENE A
GENERAL MEETING AND PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS BY
SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Article 48 of the Articles, general meetings of the Company shall
be convened by the Board on the requisition of members pursuant to the
provisions of the statutes. Pursuant to sub-section 567(1) of the Companies
Ordinance, directors required under section 566 of the Companies Ordinance
to call a general meeting must call a meeting within 21 days after the date
on which they become subject to the requirement. A general meeting called
under sub-section 567(1) of the Companies Ordinance must be held on a date
not more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening the meeting.

Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights of all
shareholders can submit a written requisition or in electronic form to move a
resolution at the annual general meeting of the Company, or who are no less
than 50 shareholders, pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance.
The requisition must state the resolution, accompanied by a statement with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution of the business to
be dealt with at the general meeting of the Company. It must also be signed
by all requisitionists for the attention of the Company not less than 6 weeks
before the annual general meeting to which the requisition relates.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company follows a policy of disclosing relevant information to
its shareholders in a timely manner. Annual and interim reports offer
comprehensive operational and financial performance information to its
shareholders and the annual general meeting of the Company provides
a forum for shareholders to exchange views directly with the Board. The
Company regards the annual general meeting of the Company as an
important event and all Directors, senior management and external auditors
make an effort to attend the annual general meeting of the Company to
address shareholders’ queries. All the shareholders of the Company are given
a minimum of 20 clear business days' notice of the date and venue of the
annual general meeting of the Company. The Company supports the CG
Code’s principle to encourage shareholders’ participation. The Company has
also complied with the requirements concerning voting by poll under the
Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Articles is available at the Company’s website www.nur.com.hk and the
Stock Exchange’s website. No changes have been made to the Articles during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

PROCEDURES BY WHICH ENQUIRES MAY BE PUT TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders of the Company may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the company secretary of the Company by
mail at the Company’s registered office at Unit 2806, 28th Floor, Wu Chung
House, 213 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The company secretary
of the Company is responsible for forwarding communications to the Board
and/or relevant Board committees of the Company, where appropriate, to
answer the shareholders’ questions.

PROCEDURES FOR NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS FOR
ELECTION

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person for
election as a Director are available and accessible on the Company’s website
at www.nur.com.hk.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BET RS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

NATIONAL UNITED RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEXRBHEERZERERDT

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of National
United Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 52 to 119, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion
on these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our
opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in

compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

1. Certain opening balances and corresponding figures
Our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “2018 Financial
Statements”), which form the basis for the corresponding figures
presented in the current year's consolidated financial statements, was
disclaimed because of the significance of the possible effect of the
limitations on the scope of our audit and the material uncertainty in
relation to going concern, details of which are set out in our audit report
dated 9 July 2019. Accordingly, we were then unable to form an opinion
on the 2018 Financial Statements.

National United Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (cont’d)
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (cont’d)

2.

Limited accounting books and records of two subsidiaries - First
Concept Industrial Group Limited and iFrontier LLC

Due to the insufficiency of supporting documentation and explanations
for accounting books and records in respect of the First Concept
Industrial Group Limited and iFrontier LLC for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018, we were unable to carry out audit procedures
to satisfy ourselves as to whether the following income and expenses
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 and the assets and
liabilities as at 31 December 2018, and the segment information and
other related disclosure notes in relation to the Group, as included in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, have been accurately
recorded and properly accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements. These two subsidiaries were disposed of during the reporting
period. Due to the insufficiency of supporting documentation and
explanations for accounting books and records, we were unable to carry
out audit procedures to satisfy ourselves whether the gain on disposal
of subsidiaries of approximately HK$100,212,000 for the year ended 31
December 2019 have been accurately recorded and properly accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements.

B RBERE

TRRER @

TRRERZEE (8)
2. WEKBARAAZERETHRIRTHE-BLE

H#LEFER 2 d RiFrontier LLC

BN AL E XS E AR QA RiFrontier
LLCBEZE-Z-NAFR-_Z-N\F+H
=S+ RALEFEZEHEERTEZERAX
HREBETAE BERENTERREFUS
EEEHTINBE_E—NERZZE—N\FE
TZA=tT—BUEFEZRARRAIZERZ
T-NE+-A=Z+—BZBEREE UK

DEEMKEME BEEEMZAENER
d( BEEEFAVBRERABE)RTEN

AN RERERLSENZ BAR - ZmEK
BARITRBEHREANEE AR RER
REZEAXNHRBRETIRR  TEREWNT
BERRFULSBEEEMABEE=Z—NLF+=
A=+—RLEFEZHEMNBRAR 2 HEL
100,212,000/ T2 B B R R 6 U IS R ERE
REREBAR

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+—-BLEE

2019 2018
ZE-NF —ZE-)N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Income and expenses: WARBEX:
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz W= 100,212 -
Total comprehensive income FRE2EBALLE
for the year 100,212 -
As at
31 December
2018
RZE—NF
+=—A=+—8
HK$'000
FHET
Assets and liabilities: EEREE:
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TETFIE R K H M E WGRIE 634
Bank and cash balances RITRRESET 925
Trade payables FERE 5 (38,266)
Other payables and accruals HMENRBRESER (39,724)
Net liabilities BEFH (76,431)
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BET RS

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (cont’d)
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (cont’d)

3.

Loss on deconsolidation of the subsidiaries

As explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, certain
subsidiaries of the Company have been deconsolidated from the Group
since 1 January 2016. No sufficient evidence has been provided to satisfy
ourselves as to whether the Company had lost control of the aforesaid
certain subsidiaries on 1 January 2016 and throughout the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2019. Accordingly we were unable to satisfy
ourselves to the deconsolidated subsidiaries, as to the completeness of
the transactions of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2019 and the Group’s financial position for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Borrowings

No sufficient evidence has been provided to satisfy ourselves, in relation
to the existence, rights and obligations and valuation of the borrowings
of approximately HK$40,025,000 and HK$40,535,000 as at 31
December 2019 and 2018 respectively.

Going Concern

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements
which mentions that the Group as at 31 December 2019 the Group has
net current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately HK$774,831,000
and HK$563,774,000 respectively. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis on
the assumption that the proposed restructuring of the Company will be
successfully completed, and that, following the restructuring, the Group
will continue to meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due in
the foreseeable future. The consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments that would result from a failure to complete the
restructuring. We consider that the disclosures are adequate. However,
in view of the extent of the uncertainty relating to the completion of
the restructuring, we disclaim our opinion in respect of the material
uncertainty relating to the going concern basis.

Any adjustments to the figures as described from points 1 to 5 above might
have a significant consequential effect on the Group's results and cash flows
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 and the financial positions
of the Group as at 31 December 2019 and 2018, and the related disclosures
thereof in the consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

DIRECTORS’' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. However, because of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we
were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a
basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

REPORT ON OTHER MATTERS UNDER SECTIONS
407(2) AND 407(3) OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE

In respect alone of the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section
of our report:

e we were unable to determine whether adequate accounting records had
been kept; and

e we have not obtained all the information and explanations that, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, are necessary and material for the
purpose of the audit.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Sze Lin Tang

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P03614
Hong Kong, 13 July 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T —NWF+_A=+—HItFE

Notes 2019 2018
B &t —E-hE —ZT-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Revenue W &= 7 97,767 54,697
Cost of sales & KA (44,955) (12,369)
Gross profit E7 52,812 42,328
Other income H A A 8 500 15,619
Administrative and other operating THREMEERT
expenses (42,961) (22,841)
Profit from operations mEHER 10,351 35,106
Finance cost & Bl A 9 (38,299) (51,753)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B ARz W 100,212 -
Reversal of impairment loss on property, #1% - &= MR EH
plant and equipment BEE B[R - 1,339
Profit/(loss) before tax BRBADEFR S (EE) 72,264 (15,308)
Income tax expense Fr8BiM 10 (2,899) -
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF (BE) 11 69,365 (15,308)
Attributable to: LT ALEAS:
Owners of the Company /NI Z =N 61,556 (14,673)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R = 7,809 (635)
69,365 (15,308)
Earnings/(loss) per share RKABEE AEM
attributable to owners of BRERN(FHB)
the Company 13
Basic (HK cents per share) AR (FRBW) 0.96 (0.23)
Diluted (HK cents per share) i (B 0.96 (0.23)
52 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEZEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T — N F+_A=+—HItFE

Notes 2019 2018
Lig=3 —E-hEF A
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHBT
Profit/(loss) for the year FRrEF (HE) 11 69,365 (15,308)
Other comprehensive income: HitZEUWA:
Items that may be reclassified to Al EF P2 Em 2 HE -
profit or loss.
Exchange differences on translation BMEBINEEFIEE 2
of foreign operations EHERE 727 11,275
Exchange differences reclassified HEMBARKENSEE
to profit or loss on disposal of B ENZEE
subsidiaries 724 -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FREEEA S (EE)BE
for the year 70,816 (4,033)
Total comprehensive RTATEEFERZE
income/(loss) for the year WA (B8 #E:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company FiN/NEIEZ F =N 63,783 (3,048)
Non-controlling interests FEfE AR A 2 7,033 (985)
70,816 (4,033)
BREE S ERIERER A A 53
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

As at 31 December 2019 A=-ZE—hE+-F=+—H

Notes 2019 2018
B &t —E—-hEF —T-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE MRE 15 120,866 168,491
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 88,951 -
Deferred tax asset IRIER A& 17 8,448 -
Intangible assets mEAE 335 -
Goodwill [k 18 34,265 -
252,865 168,491
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables FEWE 5K 20 41,847 559
Prepayments, deposits and BRIE Rk
other receivables H ity g W 5108 21 83,929 195,117
Bank and cash balances RITRBE2EF 22 3,309 1,119
129,085 196,795
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables ERE 5 23 320 38,590
Other payables and accruals HmENRIERESER 24 246,666 237,795
Borrowings BE 25 166,367 159,035
Convertible bonds AR &S 26 253,802 232,551
Non-convertible bonds AR A 75 27 90,500 90,500
Finance lease payable FE R ERIE 28 - 97,929
Lease liabilities HE&E 16 139,400 -
Tax payable FER R IE 6,861 22,651
903,916 879,051
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (774,831) (682,256)
Total assets less current BEERRBAE
liabilities (521,966) (513,765)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Finance lease payable BN BARERE 28 - 85,623
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 41,808 -
41,808 85,623
NET LIABILITIES BEEE (563,774) (599,388)
Capital and reserves B #E
Share capital PR AR 29 3,178,754 3,178,754
Reserves i (3,714,375) (3,778,158)
Equity attributable to owners of RABIHE AEIEER
the Company (535,621) (599,404)
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR (28,153) 16
TOTAL EQUITY RS (563,774) (599,388)
Approved by: KEEZ:
Ji Kaiping Guo Peiyuan
L F T =
Director Director
54 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

RERRBER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T — N F+_A=+—HItFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

EXAGE 1PN 1
Equity
Share- component Foreign
based of currency Non-
Share payment  convertible translation Accumulated controlling Total
capital reserve bonds reserve losses Total interests equity
MR B
EffiRe ARREHZ

R& L] BRBS  MERERE RitER f-3:1 FERER ¥ 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER FAL TEr FET FAL Thr Tt
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\$—F—8 3,178,754 14,028 62,077 (4,418) (3,846,797) (596,356) 1,001 (595,355)
Loss for the year FNER - - - - (14,673) (14,673) (635) (15,308)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMZALN/ (F])
for the year - - - 11,625 - 11,625 (350) 11,275

Total comprehensive income/(loss) ER2ERN/ (BB B8
for the year - - - 11,625 (14,673) (3,048) (985) (4,033)
Lapsed of share options BRELK - (14,028) - - 14,028 - - -

At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 -NETZA=Z+-BR

-hE—-A-B 3,178,754 - 62,077 7,207 (3,847,442) (599,404) 16 (599,388)
Profit for the year FNEF - - - - 61,556 61,556 7,809 69,365

Other comprehensive income/(loss) FRAMZALN/ (F])
for the year - - - 2,227 - 2,227 (776) 1,451
Total comprehensive income for the year FREERARE - - - 2,227 61,556 63,783 7,033 70,816
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR - - - - - - (224) (224)
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary BAKE-BHEAR - - - - - - (34,978) (34,978)
At 31 December 2019 RZF-AF+-A=+—H 3,178,754 - 62,077 9,434 (3,785,386) (535,621) (28,153) (563,774)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T —NWF+_A=+—HItFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
Cash flows from operating activities RETBHZHERE
Profit/(loss) before tax BRFLATET (B518) 72,264 (15,308)
Adjustments for: MTFIEEFTIEFE
Depreciation e 10,295 13,096
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTRELENE 7,786 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries BB A E 2z W (100,212) -
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BE R
plant and equipment BE2EE 174 -
Reversal of impairment losses on property, Y B MR R
plant and equipment VEREN SE=EEqE] - (1,339)
Impairment loss on trade receivables EWE 5 2 R EE1E 516 -
Interest income B A (151) (39)
Interest expenses FERX 38,290 51,707
Operating cash flows before working EEESEHAZ
capital changes KEBRERE 28,962 48,117
Change in trade receivables B E 5 (21,228) (121)
Change in prepayments, deposits and TERHIE  Re REM
other receivables JiE U ZhoE 46,479 (29,671)
Change in trade payables T E 5 3) (15)
Change in other payables and accruals HENRERESERE (24,219) (17,351)
Cash generated from operations WEFRHMBZ2HES 29,991 959
Income tax refund/(paid) 2RE () TSR 1,010 (625)
Net cash generated from REETBHMBZRLEH
operating activities 31,001 334
Cash flows from investing activities RETBZHERE
Interest received 2 UFLE 151 39
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME WEREE (12,555) (248)
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary R AUHE — M B A A 1,331 -
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEMBARZ
of subsidiaries FHEEMA 4,262 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEK
plant and equipment REATISNIE 874 -
Net cash used in investing activities RETBHFMARSEE (5,937) (209)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n _\éiﬁﬁﬁéi

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T — N F+_A=+—HItFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHET
Cash flows from financing activities BRETBZ2HRESRE
Proceeds from new borrowings MEEMBMRIE 8,202 -
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (1,123) -
Repayment of finance lease payables BREENMERENRE - (18,012)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEEaE (26,235) -
Net cash used in financing activities BMETBMARSFE (19,156) (18,012)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HekEFARSEEZ
cash equivalents #hn, CBd) B 5,908 (17,887)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXBE o wE (3,718) 12,426
Cash and cash equivalents at fﬁ%ﬂzfﬁi&wﬁfﬁﬁlﬁ =
beginning of year 1,119 6,580
Cash and cash equivalents at FHRZ2ESRERESLER
end of year 3,309 1,119
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents BE2RERBELEREZHM
Bank and cash balances WITRREHET 3,309 1,119
BREE S ERIERER A A 57
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T —NWF+_A=+—HItFE

58

GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —RESR

National United Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was ERBEERZERER AR ([KRAE]RE
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. The address of its Bk ABRAR  TMHEENTEE
registered office and principal place of business is Unit 2806, 28th Floor, MM ABEAEFERNER2IIRHAKNE
Wu Chung House, 213 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The 2812806 E c AR Al 2 I fh (THR1D 1) LB
Company’s shares (the “Shares”) are listed on the Main Board of The BAEZXSGHMARAR ([BEZFT])ERLET-
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities KNG BREER AT -EMNBARZFEE
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial BE R IRE M ERERNE19 -

statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION 2. MEEE

Going concern

As at 31 December 2019 the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately HK$774,831,000 and net liabilities of approximately
HK$563,774,000. These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the Group may be unable
to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.

Trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange was suspended on 1 August
2016.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis on the basis that the restructuring of the Group will be
successfully completed, and that, following the restructuring, the Group
will continue to meet in full its financial obligation as they fall due in the
foreseeable future.

National United Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T — N F+_A=+—HItFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (cont'd)

Deconsolidation of subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared based on the
books and records currently maintained by the Group. However, due to
the loss of contact with former directors, the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) considered that the control over the following
subsidiaries has been lost from 1 January 2016. The results, assets and
liabilities and cash flows of these subsidiaries were deconsolidated from
the consolidated financial statements of the Group from 1 January 2016
and were disposed of or had its business licence revoked during the year
ended 31 December 2019:

WRBELERFR QA
RYTEENEREBRAF
EREIABEREEERFRAT
ERTHIEESHEABERQA
ERERERESERAR
HeRMEHEARAA
WREDREERE 5B R DA
By (LB REERARAF
ERIKRIGHIKEERFRAT
EEMEFHREBRIA
BRE(LE)REERARAF
ERIKREEREBERRA A
ARYTEE L ERAR QA

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current period, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
that are relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting
period beginning on 1 January 2019. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards; Hong Kong Accounting Standards; and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did
not result in significant changes to the Group’s accounting policies,
presentation of the Group's consolidated financial statements and
amounts reported for the current and prior periods except as stated
below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T —NWF+_A=+—HItFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (cont'd)
HKFRS 16 “Leases”
The Group has first adopted HKFRS 16 “Lease” from 1 January 2019, but
has not restated comparatives figures for the year ended 31 December

2018, as permitted under the specific transitional provisions in the

standard. The Group has elected to apply the modified retrospective

approach for the application HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognize the

right-of-use assets at the date of initial application equal to the lease

liability, adjusted by the amount of related prepaid or accrued lease

payments recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position

immediately before the date of initial application.

(a) Adjustments recognised on adoption of HKFRS 16 “Leases”

60

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities
in relation to leases which had previously been classified as
"operating leases” under the principles of HKAS 17 Leases. These
liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
as of 1 January 2019. The weighted average lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January 2019 was
5.14%.

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the
following practical expedients permitted by the standard:

(i) the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics;

(i) reliance on previous assessments on whether leases are
onerous;

(iii) the exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement of the
right-of-use asset at the date of initial application; and

(iv) the use of hindsight in determining the lease term where the
contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract
is, or contains a lease at the date of initial application. Instead,
for contracts entered into before the transition date the Group
relied on its assessment made applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”.

National United Resources Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T — N F+_A=+—HItFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (cont'd)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (cont'd)

(a) Adjustments recognised on adoption of HKFRS 16 “Leases”
(cont’d)
As a lessee, the Group's leases are mainly rentals of offices. The
right-of-use assets were measured at the amount equal to the
lease liability and there were no onerous lease contracts that would
have required an adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the date
of initial application. The following table shows the adjustments
recognised for each individual line item. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

3. ERHIRKBITIEBMBERE
2Bl (@)
ERMBHRELERNE16FHE] (&)
(a) RIRREBHBREERZ16% [HE

HREZNAE (F)

ERABA AEENHEHETZARLE
HE-REXERAH ERAEEEDR
BERNHEABZSMETE R E
EEHEANAYERAEEELETRE
TERBATHSERNEECHRBHHE I
REFARZE G EMIAR -

HK$'000
At 1 January 2019: R=FB—-hE—-HA—8: FHET
Increase in lease liabilities HEBFEEM 185,967
Decrease in finance lease payables JE A< B & A B RIER 183,552
Increase in right-of-use assets fE RS EL M 111,537
Decrease in property, plant and equipment LE N N A 109,122
The reconciliation of operation lease commitment to lease liabilities KERERERBEERE CHER
HK$'000
FHET
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at RZE-NFF+_A=+—HHERZ
31 December 2018 RS FH B R E 2,503
Discounting of 5.14% H:E5.14% (88)
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental ~ R =Z— A4 — A — BiZ AR EE
borrowing rates at 1 January 2019 BERNXBRCZEERE 2,415
Analysed as: DR
Current R ED 1,159
Non-current EMEB 1,256
2,415

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective. The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a
position to state whether these new HKFRSs would have a material
impact on its results of operations and financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T —NWF+_A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXSFEEK

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention. These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of key assumptions and estimates. It also
requires the management of the Group (the “Management”) to exercise
its judgments in the process of applying the accounting policies. The
areas involving critical judgments and areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to these financial statements, are disclosed in
note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the current ability to
direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting rights
as well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to determine
whether it has control. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date the
control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net assets of that
subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any
related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T — N F+_A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Consolidation (cont’d)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
and consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between the non-controlling interests and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Business combination and goodwiill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of a
subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition is measured
at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which the
costs are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held equity
interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value
and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss. The fair value is added to the cost of acquisition to calculate the
goodwill.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 4. EXSFTEE @)

Business combination and goodwill (cont’d)

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. Goodwill
is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The method of
measuring impairment losses of goodwill is the same as that of other
assets as stated in the accounting policy “Impairment of assets” below.
Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit or
loss and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially measured
at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of an entity but is not control or joint control
over those policies. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible, including potential voting
rights held by other entities, are considered when assessing whether the
Group has significant influence. In assessing whether a potential voting
right contributes to significant influence, the holder’s intention and
financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements by the equity method and is initially recognised at cost.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the
cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is
tested for impairment together with the investment at the end of each
reporting period when there is objective evidence that the investment
is impaired. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Associates (cont’d)

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in the consolidated
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits, the
Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share
of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a loss of
significant influence represents the difference between (i) the fair value
of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that associate and (ii) the Group's share of the net assets
of that associate plus any remaining goodwill relating to that associate
and any related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture, the
Group continues to apply the equity method and does not remeasure the
retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong Dollars, which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency on initial recognition using the exchange rates prevailing
on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this translation
policy are recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Foreign currency translation (cont'd)
(b) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial statements

(0

66

(cont’d)

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates when
the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. When a gain
or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have
a functional currency different from the Company's presentation
currency are translated into the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

(i) Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

(iii) All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign entities and of borrowings are
recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are recognised
in consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates
sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates
are as follows:

Leasehold improvement 20%-33%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9%-20%
Computer equipment 9%-20%
Motor vehicles and trucks 6%-25%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding lease
liabilities when the leased assets are available for use by the Group.
Right-of-use assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets is calculated at
rates to write off their cost over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and
the lease term on a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as
follows:

Buildings
Motor vehicles and trucks

over the lease term of 3 to 10 years
over the lease term of 5 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T —NWF+_A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 4. EXSFTEE @)

Leases (cont'd)

The Group as lessee (cont’d)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease payments prepaid, initial
direct costs and the restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the lease payments discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease if that rate can be determined, or otherwise the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
profit or loss over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Short-term leases are leases with an initial lease
term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets are assets of value below
US$5,000 (approximately equivalent to HK$39,000).

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement
of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received is recognised
in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T — N F+_A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis
where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the timeframe established by the
market concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case of investments at fair
value through profit or loss. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified as financial assets at
amortised cost.

Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are classified
under this category if they satisfy both of the following conditions:

— the assets are held within a business model whose objective is to
hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less loss allowance for expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on
financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit losses are the weighted
average of credit losses with the respective risks of a default occurring as
the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the expected
credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of that financial instrument (“lifetime expected credit losses”) for
trade receivables or if the credit risk on that financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T —NWF+_A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 4. EXSFTEE @)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses (cont’d)

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade receivables) has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for
that financial instrument at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime
expected credit losses that represents the expected credit losses that
result from default events on that financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required amount is
recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T — N F+_A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to convert the bonds into
a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed conversion price are
regarded as compound instruments consist of a liability and an equity
component. At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debt. The fair value of any derivative features embedded in
the compound instruments is included in the liability component. The
difference between the proceeds of issue of the convertible bonds and
the fair values assigned to the liability component, representing the
embedded option for the holder to convert the bonds into equity of the
Group, is included in equity as capital reserve. The liability component is
carried as a liability at amortised cost using the effective interest method
until extinguished on conversion or redemption.

If the identifiable consideration received by the Group appears to be less
than the fair value of the convertible bonds issued, the Group measures
the unidentifiable services received (to be received) as the difference
between the fair value of the convertible bonds issued and that of the
identifiable consideration received, and the difference is recognised in
profit or loss.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds based on their relative carrying
amounts at the date of issue. The portion relating to the equity
component is charged directly to equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract
with a customer with reference to the customary business practices and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised product or service exceeds one year, the consideration is
adjusted for the effect of a significant financing component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T —NWF+_A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Revenue from contracts with customers (cont'd)

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring control over a product or service to a customer.
Depending on the terms of a contract and the laws that apply to that
contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied over time or at a
point in time. A performance obligation is satisfied over time if:

—  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group's performance;

- the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

— the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is recognised
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the product or service.

Other revenue
Interest income is recognised on a time—proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T — N F+_A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’'d)

Employee benefits (cont’d)

(b) Pension obligations
The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a ceiling of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution retirement
scheme organised by the government in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC"). The Group is required to contribute a specific
percentage of the payroll of its employees to the retirement scheme.
The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the retirement scheme. No
forfeited contributions may be used by the employers to reduce the
existing level of contributions.

(c) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the dates when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments
The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and employees are
measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non market-based
vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of grant. The
fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest and
adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are measured at
the fair value of the services rendered or if the fair value of the services
rendered cannot be reliably measured, at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted. The fair value is measured at the date the Group
receives the services and is recognised as an expense.
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e VI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T —NWF+_A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 4. EXSFTEE @)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a capitalisation rate
to the expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted
average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T — N F+_A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Taxation (cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item reported
in the financial statements are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purpose of allocating resources and assessing the performance of the
Group's various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of productions processes, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the

76

G

0]

(ii

(ii

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

roup if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;

) has significant influence over the Group; or

i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Company

or of a parent of the Company.

applies:

0]

(ii

(v

(v

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Company

The entity and the Company are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary

is related to the others).

) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

ii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

entity is an associate of the third entity.

employers are also related to the Group.

i) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (A).

entity (or of a parent of the entity).

or to a parent of the Company.
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One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to
the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the

4. EREFBE #)
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(iii)
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(vii

(viii)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet available
for use are reviewed annually for impairment and are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except receivables to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of any
impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 4. EXRETEBER (@)

Provisions and contingent liabilities BERSIAREE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount MAEERBEIEHA I EAFERETE
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising £ MEBAEERAERTSEUNEENZRLE
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic B BesER A Este Alen ke BTl
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate e aEERERE NEKKHEER
can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are BEXBESUNEEREEERMEIENERE
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the Bl BE o

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be HMEBRHEEMNSH A RE M A skkgen
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is EEAESE AIBRIERLE K ERN A e
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is R SRIBREEEIENABERSE -
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed BRI ERN LR AREERL AT
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are BHEEAFEES ENNeBEANABE
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is B FE 48 78 K| 25 7 B9 BT B M R A A VE BI 3% ©
remote.

Events after the reporting period WMEHHEEE

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information REAEBERRERRZ ESIRNBNEINE F
about the Group's position at the end of the reporting period or those AR EREERET T EEN RGBSR
that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate are BHBREIR WA EHRER AR 5 IEF
adjusting events and are reflected in the financial statements. Events BEFNREHEEEBE A AR BRRE
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in MsE NI EE -

the notes to the financial statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5. EXHET R EE M

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors have
made the following judgements that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

(a) Going concern basis
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis, the validity of which depends upon the
Group being able to achieve a successful restructuring and continue
its business. Details are explained in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(cont’'d)
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies (cont'd)
(b) Deconsolidation of subsidiaries

(c)

On 1 January 2016, certain subsidiaries were classified as
deconsolidated subsidiaries and excluded from the consolidated
financial statements. Based on management assessment and
with reference to the latest status of each of the deconsolidated
subsidiaries, the Company has lost control over these entities during
the year ended 31 December 2016.

Change of control

Although th Group owns less than 50% of the equity interest in it
RABAMKETEBRAR ("KEEE"), KERIE is treated
as a subsidiary because the Group is able to control the relevant
activities of XFEEE as a result of the shareholders’ agreement
between the Group and the other shareholder of X5 & IE.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

(a) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual values
and related depreciation charges for the Group's property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will revise
the depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values are
different to those previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

(b) Impairment of trade receivables, prepayments, deposits and

other receivables

The Group makes impairment loss on trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables based on assessments
of the recoverability of the trade receivables, prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgments and estimates.

5. EXHE R EEMHF @)
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(cont’d)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d)

(c)

(d)

(e)

30

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined with
reference to the present value of estimated future cash flows.
Where the future cash flows are less than expected or there
are unfavourable events and change in facts and circumstance
which result in revision of future estimate cash flows, a material
impairment loss may arise.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. The carrying amount of goodwill at the end of the
reporting period was HK$34,265,000.

Current income tax

Judgment is required in determining the provision for taxation. There
are many transactions and calculation for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the original course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact on the
current income tax in the periods in which the differences arise.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services and has only one reportable
operating segment of car rental service for the year ended 31 December
2019. There were three reportable operating segments for the year
ended 31 December 2018:

Resources trading —  trading of coking coal, aluminium rod and
fuel oil

Car rental service —  provision of car rental services

Online platform — provision of online platform for the

trading and deferred spot delivery services
of precious metals

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted
profit/(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured
consistently with the Group's profit/(loss) before tax except that interest
and other income, finance costs and unallocated corporate expenses.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents and other unallocated
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude borrowings, tax payable and other unallocated

corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, there were no
inter-segment sales.
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’d)

6. RESIFWER (@)
B

(a) Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets and (a) TTRFHEHiERE BENLBENE M
liabilities are summarised as follow: wm
Car rental
service
AREHEE RS
HK$'000
FHET
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-—hF+-A=+—HLEE
Revenue from external customers BRINARE 2 s 97,767
Segment result DEELE 42,245
Interest income on bank deposits WITERZFEWA 151
Other income EH A 349
Unallocated expenses RO (32,394)
Profit from operations Fqpinkl 10,351
Finance cost L= N (38,299)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B A F 2 W 100,212
Profit before tax R A5 A1 Vs A 72,264
Income tax expense i X (2,899)
Profit for the year F N A 69,365
Depreciation and amortisation e R 18,081
Capital expenditure BEARE 12,555
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE-hAE+=-A=+—H
Segment assets PWEE 210,359
Unallocated assets ROBEE 171,591
381,950
Segment liabilities PEEE (332,414)
Unallocated liabilities ROBEAE (613,310)
(945,724)
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'd) 6. REDIER (@
(a) (cont'd) (a) (&)
Car rental Online Resources
service platform trading Total
RERERSE Br¥a BRES Fob
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET FEL FTET
Year ended BE-Z-N\E+ZA=1+-H
31 December 2018 LEE
Revenue from external customers JERINREF 2 Iz 54,697 - - 54,697
Segment result PMEE 50,579 (1,709) (7,520) 41,350
Interest income on bank deposits 8177722 Fll B4 A 39
Other income Hip A 15,580
Unallocated expenses APERAX (21,863)
Profit from operations R 35,106
Finance cost BE A (51,753)
Reversal of impairment losses on #1% + |5 k3% B H)
property, plant and equipment  JR{EEEEE 1,339
Loss before tax BREATEE (15,308)
Income tax expense FERAX -
Loss for the year FREE (15,308)
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #7& K # 84 11,126 310 1,660 13,096
Capital expenditure BRRY 248 - - 248
As at 31 December 2018  R-ZE-\E+=-fA=+-H
Segment assets PHEE 205,093 4,438 84,053 293,584
Unallocated assets ADEEE 71,702
365,286
Segment liabilities PHEE (321,156) (1,642) (74,549) (397,347)
Unallocated liabilities APEAE (567,327)
(964,674)
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont’d) 6. RESIFWER (@)
(b) WEE ¥ :

(b) Geographical information:
The Group’s revenue analysed by geographical location and
information about its non-current assets by geographical location
are detailed below:

REBERBE DT 2 Wam Rk EEH 2
FRBEEZEHFBWOT

Revenue Non-current assets
Uy 2% ERBEE
Year ended 31 December As at 31 December
BE+-A=t-HLEE W+=A=+—-8

2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\EF —E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TET TERT FET
Hong Kong BB - - 649 -
PRC H 97,767 54,697 252,216 162,819
Mongolia EE - - - 5,672
97,767 54,697 252,865 168,491

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based on the
locations of the customers.

(c) Information about major customers
Revenue from operations of HK$34,430,000 (2018: HK$53,576,000)
was derived from two customers (2018: one customer) in the car
rental service segment which individually contributed 10% or more
to the Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019 and

()

273 & BB R IIRIBEE P AR

&5 e

FEEFEH

4R 3534,430,0008 7T ( —ZF— )\ ¢
53,576,000/ 7T) TR B A EHE R
DERORMEREF (ZE—NF:—4F
BRE) ZERPENEAEEEEZE =T

2018. —NER-TE—\F+-_A=+—AItHF
&2 W E10% T F o
7. REVENUE 7. W

The principal activities of the Group are car rental service. All revenue
generated by the Group were derived from the PRC and recognised at a
point in time.

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable by the Group
from business income, services rendered to customers, net of discounts,
returns and sales related taxes are as follows:

AEENIZEBR/NERERE - AKEE
£ 2 BB R 1 R 8 P BB R X (R B ] B

27
o ©

WaEAEEEXEBRA RAEFRHERS
(FNErITeE  RA R HERBRE) © W R ER
E R AR

2019 2018

—E-hE —E-N\#

HK$000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Car rental service income ABHERBES KA 97,767 54,697
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8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hfttlr A
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Bank interest income HRATHLE WA 151 39
Gain on derecognition of other payables H A RIBR IR Z W - 15,133
Sundry income M A 349 447
500 15,619
9. FINANCE COST 9. BIEMK
2019 2018
—ZE—-hF —ZT-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Bank charges RITER 9 46
Interest expenses on borrowings BEZFEMAX

— interest on convertible bonds — A RRESR ZFE 21,251 33,631
— interest on non-convertible bonds — TR ESZ T8 5,430 5,815
— interest on finance lease —-BMEHREZFE - 12,131
— interest on lease liabilities - HEBEZFE 11,142 -
— interest on other borrowings —HMEEZFE 130 130
— interest on bank borrowings —RITBEZAE 337 -
38,299 51,753
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10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRE BB X
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E—)N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BIEATR A — BB RSB
Provision for the year FREE = -
Current tax — the PRC Enterprise Income Tax B3 % 18 — fp B (> 2 PR 187
Provision for the year FREE 2,899 -
2,899 -
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) BEMEBNDREFARBEAEE 2 HEHER
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. BsFARE16.5% (ZF—\F :16.5% )5
=
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax, the applicable REPEMBEMSTUE  REBL N E 2
income tax rate of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC is 25% (2018: BABZHEAMBHMER2% (ZT—\F:
25%). 25% ) °
The reconciliation between the income tax and profit/(loss) before tax FIEHEBRB AR R, (E18) RIATBFE
multiplied by the Hong Kong profits tax rate is as follows: BEZHENOT
2019 2018
—ZT-hEF —E—N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Profit/(loss) before tax BB AR (EE) 72,264 (15,308)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of RAM PSR E16.5%
16.5% (2018: 16.5%) (ZZ—NF:16.5%)
AR A 11,924 (2,526)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries 7/ Bl & @K B R A TR E 2
operating in the PRC T 2,556 (3,160)
Income not subject to tax BAZRBA (18,114) -
Expenses not deductible for tax R 6,028 5,061
Tax losses not recognised RERBIAEE 505 625
2,899 -
86 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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11.PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR MERBERN(EE)
The Group’s profit/(loss) for the year is stated after charging the REBERNGHN(BE)ENE T &E
following: 125K :
2019 2018
ZE-NF ZE-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
FHEx FHET
Depreciation e 10,295 13,096
Auditor’s remuneration ZEENH B & 800 800
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FAEEERE 7,786 -
Minimum lease payments under FENTRELEMERTZ
operating lease in respect of: SEMERE:
- land and buildings — Tt RETF - 1,455
Staff costs (including Directors’ BINK (BIEZEEHM)
remuneration):
— salaries, bonuses and allowances — & EAREEL 9,631 4,024
— retirement benefits scheme — RIREFIF &I
contributions 205 62
9,836 4,086
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 1N2.EMHS

12.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), () and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

ARE LR R BB L RNEDI55383(1)()
b)) (EOERRR (REEENDER) R
BIE25 B2 FRESH M T

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM 2
2019
ZE-hF
Equity- Retirement
Salaries, settled benefit
bonus and  share option scheme
Fees allowances expenses contributions Total
& NEREE RINER
e AL RRE TB R AR X TR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
Executive directors HTES
Ji Kaiping 2T 1,200 400 - - 1,600
Guo Peiyuan B 1,080 400 - - 1,480
Non-executive directors  FHTES
An Jingwen 394 300 - - - 300
Independent non-executive BY FHTEE
directors
Li Wen X 180 - - - 180
Qiu Ke B3 180 - - = 180
Chen Yen Yung** BT~ 212 - - - 212
3,152 800 - - 3,952
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12.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (cont'd) NR.E=M
(a) Directors’ emoluments (cont’'d) (a) EEM L (&)
2018
—Z-N\F
Equity- Retirement
settled benefit
Salaries and share option scheme
Fees allowances expenses contributions Total
NEEEE RIKTEF
e HeRER BRERS TR wat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET FTET TER FTET
Executive directors HTEE
Ji Kaiping wHYF 1,200 - - - 1,200
Guo Peiyuan** BB~ 800 - - - 800
Non-executive directors ~ FHTEE
Mou Ling* BRI 274 - - - 274
An Jingwen** TR+ 67 - - - 67
Independent non-executive B FHTES
directors
Li Wen** el 133 - - - 133
Qiu Ke** 5 ** 105 - - - 105
2,579 - - - 2,579

38

* Resigned or retired during the relevant year
**  Appointed during the relevant year

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration in respect of the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T — N F+_A=+—HItFE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (cont’'d)

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included 4 (2018: 5) directors whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented above. The emoluments of the remaining 1
(2018: nil) individual is set out below:

N.EEZME @

(b) TEREBHEMAL
FAXEEREREHFMALRBEDS
(ZZ2-N\F RARB)EF EilaRn
RERZINZ DM -HEp—B (ZF—N
FE)ATZMEEIIWT

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Basic salaries and allowances HAFH & KERL 600 -

The emoluments fell within the following band:

e FToHE:

Number of individuals

AR
2019 2018

S —z-N\F

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/8 7T 1 -

No emoluments had been paid by the Group to the Directors or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings (2018: loss) per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the earnings (2018: loss) for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$61,556,000
(2018: loss for the year HK$14,673,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 6,411,770,500 (2018: 6,411,770,500) in
issue during the year.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

No diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018 is presented as the effects of all convertible bonds and options
are anti-dilutive for the years.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect
of the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

FEBETBENEETHALRRSHFMALINE
M2 - ERBES RS I8 sk 1E hn B3 AR SR [
2 0 P = A 0 o

B.AEARRFEEAREERER

(B#8)

BREXBA(FHE)
ARBBEBABRGEERERRBF (ZZ—N
F BB NRERAARBEEARBEFRET
(ZZ—\F : 518) 461,556,000/ 7T (=
=— \F I F£NE1814,673,0008 L) R FERA
21T AR 2 hnHE 19 £06,411,770,5000%
(ZZ— \# 16,411,770,500/% ) 5+ & o

ERBEERA(BHE)

HREE T - NAFER-Z—N\F+=A
ST —BIEFEMEIRRES KEREHA
REEZE BWUEBEINZMEFENHTRE
SERF

14.8E

EFFRMENHE-E-NFR-B-N\EF
+oBEt-RLEEZEABRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZ=Z

—NE+ZA=+—RBLFE

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15.9%¥ BMERKE
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
Leasehold office vehicle
improvements equipment and trucks Total
BR-HEBR
HEMELE BAERE AEREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FHET FHET FHET
Cost: B
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F—H—H 179 1,424 239,158 240,761
Additions NE - - 248 248
Exchange differences = 9) (76) (10,425) (10,510)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+ZA=+—-H 170 1,348 228,981 230,499
Reclassified as right-of-use assets i%ﬁ”*ﬁﬁi FREEE - - (125,490) (125,490)
As at 1 January 2019 \\ —Z-nF—HA—-H 170 1,348 103,491 105,009
Lease liabilities fully repaid BHEBCHERRE - N 33,350 33,350
Additions nNE - - 12,555 12,555
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMNBRE - - (45,294) (45,294)
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary RENE-BHBAR - - 37,911 37,911
Disposal HE - - (3,855) (3,855)
Exchange differences EHEE 3) (20) (1,996) (2,019)
At 31 December 2019 -NE+=ZA=1+-H 167 1,328 136,162 137,657
Accumulated depreciation: BIHE:
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-N\F—H—H 179 819 50,408 51,406
Charge for the year FRZH - 310 12,786 13,096
Reversal of impairment loss REBEEE - - (1,339) (1,339)
Exchange differences =R 9) (58) (1,088) (1,155)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZA=+—-H 170 1,071 60,767 62,008
Reclassified as right-of-use assets i%ﬁ”*ﬁﬁi TRELE - - (16,368) (16,368)
At 1 January 2019 N—E—-NF-A—H 170 1,071 44,399 45,640
Lease liabilities fully repaid TYEE,HEAE - - 6,122 6,122
Charge for the year iﬂﬂi‘iﬁ - 19 10,276 10,295
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMHBRE - - (40,452) (40,452)
Disposal & - - (2,806) (2,806)
Exchange differences iR =R 3) 50 (2,055) (2,008)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-AE+=ZA=1+-H 167 1,140 15,484 16,791
Carrying amount: BREE:
At 31 December 2019 R-E-AF+=A=1+-H - 188 120,678 120,866
At 31 December 2018 R_E-N\E+-_A=+—8 - 277 168,214 168,491

At 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of motor vehicle held by the
Group secured against bank loans amounted to HK$11,869,000. At 31
December 2018, the carrying amount of motor vehicle held by the Group
under finance leases amounted to HK$109,122,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T — N F+_A=+—HItFE

16.LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. HEREAEEE
Disclosures of lease-related items: HEMHEEEEE:
2019
—Z-hEF
HK$'000
FET
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—8:
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
— Buildings —BF 13,499
— Motor vehicles —A8 75,452
88,951
The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, NEEHEaEERNAERBEREY
of the Group's lease liabilities is as follows: EEAE ST ¢
Within one year —FR 142,949
In the second year F_F 35,222
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FEZZFELF (BEEREMTF) 6,394
Over five years iR F 2,520
187,085
Year ended 31 December: BE+-H=+—-HLEE:
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets ERAREEZIERS
— Buildings —gF 3,064
— Motor vehicles —"RE 4,722
7,786
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBEZFE 11,142
Total cash outflow for leases HEReRLBE 26,235
Additions to right-of-use assets REGAREE 13,997

The Group leases various buildings and motor vehicles. Lease agreements
are typically made for fixed periods of 3 to 10 years. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants and the leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

AEEHEETEFRAE - HEHRBEAT
B3E10F 2 B E HIR - M E BRI IRE B &
EHER UHASETANGER GG -HE
e8I AR E R R BREEE T AE
fEEHE R
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T —NWF+_A=+—HItFE

16.LEASES AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (cont'd) 16. HEREAEEE @)

Present

Lease value of lease

payments payments

HERE HERERE

2019 2019

—E-NF —E-AF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within one year —FR 142,949 139,400

In the second year B4 35,222 33,777

In the third to fifth years, inclusive Fo-EFNF (BREEEME) 6,394 5,599

Over five years BEAF 2,520 2,432

187,085 181,208

Future finance charges RRFE (5,877) N/ATNE A

Present value of lease obligations HEEREZRME 181,208 181,208
Less: Amount due for settlement within BN 1218 A N BB E 2 KB

12 months (shown under current (MARBEE)
liabilities) (139,400)
Non-current portion EMBE D 41,808

17.

92

DEFERRED TAX

17 EER 18

The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised by the Group

NTRAEERR L TERERRAEE

Impairment Revaluation

of trade of motor
receivables vehicles Total
EWE S RRE REEMG et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2019 RZZ—hF—HA—H - - -
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary 18 &8 — M B A &) 3,002 5,284 8,286
Exchange difference EHER 59 103 162
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-—NAF+ZA=+—H 3,061 5,387 8,448

National United Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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e VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T — N F+_A=+—HItFE

DEFERRED TAX (cont'd)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for
consolidated statement of financial position purposes:

17.E R E (|)
T AERA BBRNE B 2 EERIEES
(HE$418) D7 -

2019

—E-hF

HK$'000

FET

Deferred tax assets EIERIBE B 8,448

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$123,931,000 (2018: approximately HK$133,082,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$123,931,000 (2018:
HK$133,082,000) in the PRC are available for offsetting against future
profits that may be carried forward for five years for PRC enterprise
income tax purpose.

RmER - A& EE ] B EKHE R I & A
ZARB A IIEE1E#123,931,0008 7L (= F
— J\4F : #7133,082,00078 7T ) %8 70 K 5% 7
T2 RATERIME - M B ERIEE TR IEE E -
MABCEMEHEME AERNBEER
FER B 2 E1E123,931,0008 T (Z 2 — 1\
£ :133,082,000/ 7T) - A A {EHE 85 R 20k
B WA EERF -

GOODWILL 18. &
2019
—E-hE
HK$'000
FERT
Cost: B
At 1 January m—H—8 -
Arising from deemed acquisition of a subsidiary RAWE —HHRBAREE
(note 31(b)) (MI=E31(b)) 33,607
Exchange differences fEHERE 658
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 34,265
Accumulated impairment losses: ZFHRERE -
Impairment loss recognised at 1 January R—A—BERZBEEE -
Impairment loss recognised during the year FARRZBEERE -
At 31 December Rn+=—A=+—H -
Carrying amount: BRHEE
At 31 December w+=—A=+—H 34,265
BREE S ERIERER A A 93
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T —NWF+_A=+—HItFE

18.GOODWILL (cont'd)
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition,
to the cash generating units (“CGUs") that are expected to benefit from
that business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill had been
allocated as follows:

18. & (@)

REBEHPERZHECRKRERDEER
MBS ERZEBAHNRSELEM (1]
SEABEM]) BEZEEESEBRMAT

2019
—E-AF
HK$'000
THER

TEMEE RS

Car rental service

34,265

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the recoverable amount of this
CGU is determined based on the value in use using discounted cash flow
method (level 3 fair value measurements). The key assumptions for the
discounted cash flow method are those regarding the discount rates,
growth rates and budgeted gross margin and revenue during the period.
The Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are based on long-term average
economic growth rate of the geographical area in which the businesses
of the CGUs operate. Budgeted gross margin and revenue are based on
past practices and expectations on market development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five years with
the residual period using the growth rate of 2%. This rate does not
exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets.

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows is 21%.

94 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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e VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T — N F+_A=+—HItFE

19.SUBSIDIARIES 19.M0 B 2 7]
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 are as follows: MERARR-ZE—NF+_A=+—HZFHB
R
Place of Nominal
incorporation/ value of
registration issued/paid Percentage of equity Principal
Name and operation up capital  attributable to the Company activities
MY/ ERR BRf/ \
£ EENE BEHEAEE AAREEERERO L TEEH
2019 2018
ZB-nf —E-N\F

Direct subsidiaries:

EENEBRAR:

Konmate Investments Ltd Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding

EERBERAA BB AT RERR

Trade Rainbow Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive

TEERRA Bk VBT HEXH

Billions Achieve Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive

MEFRAT Bh BT TEXE

Dengyi Investments Limited British Virgin Us$1 100% 100% Inactive

) Islands ("BVI")
BEREERAA RBRAHE (B TEXE
((RBERHES])

Asia Construction Enterprise Limited BVI US$50,000 100% 100% Inactive

THRROEERAA EBRAHE 50,000% 7T TEXE

Delight Genius Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive

BRERRA Bk 1T LEEH

NUR Industry Company Limited BVI US$1 100% 100% Inactive

BB EREZARAA EBRAHE (B TEXE

NUR Financial Holdings Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100% Inactive

AFXHEEReRERERAR RERNES (E HEXH

NUR New Energy Management BVI US$1 100% 100% Investment holding

Company Limited \

AFBaE RN RERERAR RERNES (E RERR

Indirect subsidiaries:

BENEAR:

GMG Media Group Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100% Investment holding and
provision of consulting
services

EBRAHE E3 RERR R R RS

Ideal Honour Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding

@ERAR Bk 1T RERR

NUR Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive

BB EREEARAA BB BT TEXE

Million Best International Enterprise Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Management services

BEARCEXERAR Bk 1T BB

BRBAERERERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T —NWF+_A=+—HItFE

19.SUBSIDIARIES (cont’d) 19./F B 2 7 (@)

Place of Nominal
incorporation/ value of
registration issued/paid Percentage of equity Principal
Name and operation up capital  attributable to the Company activities
EMALERR B8/
£ EENEY BEHEAEE FARELEERDL TEREY
2019 2018
ZE-nE —E-N\F
NUR Clean Energy Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive
BRBAERE R RRERRATA BE 18T TEXG
NUR Industry (Hong Kong) Company Limited  Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive
AZXMAER (F8)BRAA i BT TEXHG
Amazing Idea Global Limited Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100% Inactive
PERRBBRLA Ak (E BEXE
NUR Internet Investment Limited Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100% Inactive
BxBaERABEREARAR 7k %7 UEEK
Glorious Future Logistics Limited Hong Kong Us$100 100% 100% Inactive
BEMRBRAA S8 100% 7T TEXHG
NUR Investments Company Limited Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100% Inactive
BB ERRERRAA Bk (E3 THEEXHG
Million Fortune International BVI US$10,000 70% 70% Investment holding
__Investment Limited B .
REERREFRAA RBRAAS 10,000% 7T REER
Most Billion Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 70% 70% Investment holding
BRBRAA ) 18T RERR
Well Link Logistics co., Ltd. Macau MOP$100,000 70% 70% Investment holding
ERMRERD A R 100,000/277 7T REER
EEHCEREREAERAT PRC HK$500,000 70% 70%  Investment holding
i 500,000/ 7T RAER
PHRASERRERSPO(FE)ARDA  PRC RMB10,000,000 63% 63%  Operate platform
HE ARE ma¥a
10,000,0007T
IRAERMAEREERDA PRC RMB158,000,000 100% 100%  Car rental service
G N RERERE
158,000,0007C
Gear World Development Limited BVI Us$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
RERUES 10,000% 7T RERR
Gold Vantage Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
eHERBRAA 3 1B RERR
LR HEFHEERERLA PRC HK$4,000,000 100% 100%  Inactive
i 4,000,0007% 70 TEEY
AR RERHEREFTERRAA PRC RMB15,000,000 49% 49%  Car rental service
HE AR REBERY
15,000,0007C
SRR R ERAR PRC HK$50,000,000 100% 0% Inactive
i 50,000,000/ 7T TEEY

National United Resources Holdings Limited
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19.SUBSIDIARIES (cont’d)

e VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T — N F+_A=+—HItFE

The following table shows information of subsidiaries that have non-
controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. The summarised

19./F B A &) (@)
TRIRAE B A IR ([
$DZHBARZBE B EREEIEAF

financial information represents amounts before inter-company BESE A K
eliminations.
Name £i8 AEEE EEEE
2019 2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE—-hF —E-N\F
Principal place of business/country ~ =B & ¥4 % KT ER PRC PRC PRC
of incorporation i G ®
% of ownership interests/voting EERERFTAZ
rights held by NCI mEREER BREEESL 51%/0% 37%I37% 37%/37%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FH&ET FHET
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—8:
Non-current assets ERBEE 43,510 186 317
Current assets MENEE 44,053 3,886 4,121
Current liabilities mENAE (142,233) (4,590) (4,553)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (429) - -
Net liabilities BEEHE (55,099) (518) (115)
Accumulated NCI REtFEERER (28,100) (192) (43)
Year ended 31 December: BEt+t-HA=+—-HLEE:
Revenue W &= 56,728 - -
Profit/(loss) w7 (E5R) 15,608 (409) (1,672)
Total comprehensive profit/(loss) 2EEF (EE) B 14,080 (402) (1,683)
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI PREEFERER 2
wmA, (EE) 7,960 (151) (619)
Dividends paid to NCI BRI 2 R E - - -
Net cash generated from/(used in)  #&2EBFS, (FTH)
operating activities 2 & F5 1,655 (5) (1,351)
Net cash used in investing activities & EEBTAZ RS FHE (1,107) = -
Net cash used in financing activities REEEEBFTHAZ RS FH (896) - -
Net decrease in cash and cash ReMFERREEEBEZ
equivalents B E R (348) (5) (1,351)
BEREAERIERERAR 97

2019 F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VI RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T —NWF+_A=+—HItFE

20.TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. B E B XK
The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit or AREBHRRE B S IGR T EURKRSFES
received in advance. The credit period is generally 30 days. The Group NET EEH MK A30H - KEBBH N EK
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables so as RHIKREERIKRBUEZEEREEER S &
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by ETFTHBRT AR ES NEEBNEFEERM
the Directors. The Group has concentration of credit risk on certain EdREFEP - R-_ZE—NhE+-_/A=+—
customers. As at 31 December 2019, two (31 December 2018: two) A Ma (22— N\F+ZA=+—80: M%)
customers attributable to the Group’s total trade receivables were 44% BEEMAEEEINE S RETE244% (ZF
(31 December 2018: 81%). The Group does not hold any collateral —NE+-A=+—H:81%) - NEE I 4=
or other credit enhancement over its trade receivable balances. Trade MEEWE S RESFEETAEARSERE
receivables are non-interest bearing. EERESEE - BKESHRILTEE -
The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date, is as FEWEB SRR EHHZERS WM :
follows:
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E—-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Within 30 days 30HA 9,710 559
31-90 days 31HE90H 12,471 -
Over 90 days but within 1 year HBEIOHER —F R 19,666 -
Over 1 year HBiE—F 1,286 770
Less: Impairments BORE (1,286) (770)
41,847 559
Reconciliation of impairment of trade receivables: FEWE 5 R BB R -
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
At 1 January ®n—H—H 770 770
Increase in impairment for the year FARRE N 516 -
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 1,286 770
98 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T — N F+_A=+—HItFE

20.TRADE RECEIVABLES (cont'd)

The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS 9 to provide for
expected credit losses using the lifetime expected loss provision for all
trade receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. The expected credit losses also incorporate forward

21.

20.ENE Z R (m)
7N 4 [ fE B 5 B 5 4R 45 £ BIB9S IE T M0 B8
EFEREREEEESREG YRFAE
WE SRR 2 ARG REG - A EES
EEFR EXESHCRELARERARE
MRBBREHE EHEEBENRENE

looking information. &R
Within 31-365 Over
30 days days 1 year
Current past due past due past due Total
anH B
ME  @E30AR”  31%365A BAE-F @t
At 31 December 2019 R-E-hE+=-A=1+-H
Weighted average expected loss rate  fI#E ¥ B E A58 % 0% 0% 0% 100%
Receivable amount (HK$'000) ERIE (FiET) 9,710 - 32,137 1,286 42,617
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BEAEE (TET) - - - 1,286 1,286
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-N§+=ZA=1+-H
Weighted average expected loss rate  INEFHFELFER 0% 0% 0% 100%
Receivable amount (HK$'000) FEUHE(FHT) 559 - - 770 1,329
Loss allowance (HK$'000) BEEE (TET) - - - 770 770

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 1.8 FE - e R HMwEWTE
RECEIVABLES
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET
Amount due from an associate JFE Y — R B & A B 5E - 70,302
Other receivables H fth fE YRR IB 14,358 7,100
Guarantee deposit for HEAGBZRESR
lease liabilities 32,322 32,709
Paid in advance TE T RIE 20,240 204,334
Prepayments and deposits TR IE RIS 17,009 7,055
83,929 321,500
Impairment BE - (126,383)
83,929 195,117

(a) The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
repayment terms. During the year, the associate became a subsidiary of the

Company.

(a) e — B & D ER
Bl FEE R - MEFER

ZHERE

BRBAERERERAR

AREEA . %8RI
A PN ¥ N
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T —NWF+_A=+—HItFE

22.BANK AND CASH BALANCES

As at 31 December 2019, the bank and cash balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") approximately to HK$1,373,000
(2018: HK$125,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is
subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

23.TRADE PAYABLES

The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice date, is as

2. BTRBESERE

RZZE-NAF+_A=+—HB XEEUA
RE(TARBDHEZRITERRSEFD
#1,373,000% 70 ( —=F — U4 : 125,000/%
) ARERBASEMERAZPEINEE
PR FTIR

RITRETIIREBE A RITHERME 2 FHH X
BRERFI B, o RITAS 1T T 17 B Sl 0 M 32 4030
BAGERFZRT

23.EHESZR

ENESTIREZARZRESITAT

follows:
2019 2018
—E-NEF ZT-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Over 1 year HBiE—F 320 38,590

24.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

24 Ht R RIEA KBS E

2019 2018

—E-hEF ZT-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Other payables H th & 5 5RI8 226,768 188,866
Receipt in advance TEWRIA - 35,215
Amount due to a related party S — % @ 5 ZOA (a) 2,947 -
Amount due to a director B —R2EEHIAE (b) 537 -
Accruals EsER 16,414 13,714
246,666 237,795

The amount due to a related party is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
repayment terms.

The amount due to a director is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed
repayment terms.

(@) BN—2EBIFELEER 28 RLEE

(b) BN —RERFAARBEM 2ERTEREE
B

25.BORROWINGS 25. 68
2019 2018
—E-NEF —T—)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FHET
Bank loans RITER (a) 9,498 -
Other loans HEMER (b) 156,869 159,035
166,367 159,035

100

Bank loans are secured, bears an interest rate of 5.15% and is repayable on
demand or within one year.

Other loans are unsecured, interest free and is repayable on demand or within
one year.

National United Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T — N F+_A=+—HItFE

26.CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 27 October 2015, the Company issued a convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$65,735,900 which bear interest rate of 4.5% per
annum. (the “2015CB"). The 2015CB are convertible into ordinary shares
of the Company within 24 months from the date of issue at a conversion
price of HK$0.265 per conversion share (subject to adjustment), and
a maximum of 248,060,000 conversion shares can be issued. At 31
December 2019, the outstanding principal amount are HK$26,500,000.

On 10 November 2015, the Company issued a zero-coupon convertible
bonds in the principal amount of HK$120,000,000 (the “QDCB1") as
part of the consideration for the acquisition of 70% equity interest
in the entire issued share capital of Million Fortune International
Investment Limited. The QDCB1 are convertible into ordinary shares of
the Company at any time between the date of issue and its maturity
date at a conversion price of HK$0.40 per conversion share (subject to
adjustment), and a maximum of 300,000,000 conversion shares can
be issued. At 31 December 2019, the outstanding principal amount is
HK$55,580,000.

On 6 September 2016, the Company issued a convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$140,000,000 (the “TMCB1") which bear interest
rate of 3% per annum as part of the consideration for the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in the entire issued share capital of Gear World
Development Limited. The TMCB1 are convertible into ordinary shares
of the Company at any time between the date of issue and its maturity
date on 31 August 2019 at a conversion price of HK$0.30 per conversion
share (subject to adjustment), and a maximum of 466,666,666
conversion shares can be issued. At 31 December 2019, the outstanding
principal amount is HK$140,000,000.

On 31 March 2017, the Company issued a zero-coupon convertible
bonds in the principal amount of HK$13,220,218 (the "QDCB2") as
part of the consideration for the acquisition of 70% equity interest
in the entire issued share capital of Million Fortune International
Investment Limited. The QDCB2 are convertible into ordinary shares of
the Company at any time between the date of issue and its maturity
date at a conversion price of HK$0.40 per conversion share (subject
to adjustment), and a maximum of 33,050,045 conversion shares can
be issued. At 31 December 2019, the outstanding principal amount is
HK$13,220,018.

26. T R E 5

RZZE—EF+A=-TtA AARBITAE
©%8565,735,9008 L2 AR E S HIRF
FRLIS% B ([ZE—HEABRRES]) °
ZE-RAFRRESFITNEITA R4
BMANERAAARLTAR BHREATR
IR 70.265%8 T (A] THAE)  ZEL AT
248,060,000k MR D - R T —NF+=
A=+—H KREEZXE T H26,500,000%#
5o

RZZ—AF+—ABTH ARBIETALE
#$120,000,0008 Tt 2 TESAIMRES ([F
SABRERESF—]) EFAKERERREES
BARZEMEEHITHRAZ70%M#E /T DR
B-55MRREF—AIRETAHELHA
BRI R ER AR QR L@ EIREA
TRERD040EB L (A FHE) &%
#%17300,000,000/% ¥k H - R =T — NF
+=ZA=+—H " KEEKXE7 55,580,000
P T ©

RZZB—RNENANB  ARRRITALES
140,000,000 Tt 2 Al MR & 5 - HIRFF =
3%t ([RE@EmRRES—])  fEA
& Gear World Development Limited% %5 B 2%
TR Z100% R EHEBH KRB - K F B A
BRES —AIRETHSEEIHA (I=ZZ
—NENA=Z+—H) HEEAREERALR
NALAER EIREATRERR7M0.30E T
(Al FHH%E) - & % 0] % 17466,666,666/% # ik
BHp-R-ZFE—AFE+_A=+—8 kKEE
N4 %4 4140,000,000/8 7T °

RZZE—tHE=ZA=Z+—B A2RBITAE
S EA13,220218B L2 EEE A BRES
([EEHRES=]) FRKERERRERIE
BBHRBRARZIPE EITRA Z270% M 756
APRE-BETHRBRESF AR TAHEER
HABEEMFEERARA R SRR Bk
BAEREHRRMDAET (A FHAR) &%
A 3%4733,050,045 RN - RZT—NF
+ZA=1+—H KREEXE£FER13,220,018
P T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T —NWF+_A=+—HItFE

26.CONVERTIBLE BONDS (cont'd) 26. T REF (@0
The liability component of convertible bonds recognised at the end of the MNREEBAREER 2 BREEZ BB S D
reporting period is analysed as follows: Mo
2015CB QDCB1 QDCB2 TMCB1 Total
—E-51f% BEETAR EEWERR REBE
wRRES BF— BHF= TWHRRESF- st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FET FET
Liability component BERS
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-N\E—HF—H 29,101 46,870 9,369 113,580 198,920
Interest charged MBEHX 1,192 8,711 1,548 22,180 33,631
At 31 December 2018 and R -ZT—/\F
1 January 2019 +TZA=+—HK
E—-nF—A—H 30,293 55,581 10,917 135,760 232,551
Interest charged FERX 1,193 - 1,804 18,254 21,251
Liability component at RZT—-NF
31 December 2019 +ZA=+—Hz
BEHS 31,486 55,581 12,721 154,014 253,802
Portion classified as current AR EBENH S
liabilities (31,486) (55,581) (12,721) (154,014) (253,802)
Non-current portion FERBE S - - - - -
The interest charged for the year of 2015CB, QDCB1, QDCB2 and R-E—RAFAHRKES STEAUREKRES

27.

TMCB1 are calculated by applying an effective interest rate of 4.5%, 0%,
15.9% and 14.2% to the liability component respectively.

NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The non-convertible bonds (the “Bonds”) are redeemable at the
discretion of the Company at 100% of the principal amount of such
Bonds together with payment of interests accrued up to date of such
early redemption by serving at least ten calendar days written notice at
any time before the maturity date. The Bonds will be redeemed on the
date immediately following twelve to twenty-four months after the first
date of issue of the Bonds. The Bonds carry interest at a rate of 6% per
annum, which is payable annually in arrears.

_‘ﬁ%T}ﬁHXfﬁﬁ ERXEREATBREKE
F—Z2FAFNERIIRE ii““ﬂ'ﬁmﬁﬁ
4.5% 0% 15.9% %14 2% BERN R1E

27. "R ESH
TR ESR ([EH]) TAARRARRBRE
%EWEHMWLLF +EEBZEAR
N EEABESZI100% RS BERBEIR
E%@E%%ﬁiﬂ%ﬁ%°%#%%%%%
ARTEEEAMN T —_E-+HEAEBAE
Bl e EHRFFR6%aTE  WEBFXL e

2019 2018

—E-NEF —T—)\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHEx FHET

At 1 January w—HA— 90,500 90,352

Interest charged BB S'Z 5,430 5,815
Interest payable classify 758 R E A FE AT FRIB ) A ALE

to other payables (5,430) (5,667)

At 31 December BW+ZA=+—H 90,500 90,500

1 02 National United Resources Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2019



28.

29.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T — N F+_A=+—HItFE

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLE 2. B EHENRE
The Group leases certain of its motor vehicles. These leases are classified ANEBHEESEFRE -ZEHENEAMEMR
as finance leases and have remaining lease terms of 3 years. The effective EEHMTHHAIFE - ERXEREF RN T
borrowing rates were ranging from 6.4% to 7.3% per annum. The leases 6.4%%7.3% FHELNBETER SBEERIME
are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered MK ARSI RET L L HE
into for contingent rental payment.
Present value of
Minimum minimum
lease payments lease payments
BREHERE HEBERERE
2018 2018
—ET-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET
Within one year —FR 93,875 97,929
In the second year FF 50,424 45,864
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=FZFRF (BEEEMF) 68,475 39,759
212,774 183,552
Future finance charges KRR ELE 2 (29,222) N/A 5 F
Present value of lease obligations HEERZHE 183,552 183,552
Less: Amount due for BN 12E A AEEEE 2 RIB
settlement within (FIATRBBEE)
12 months (shown
under current liabilities) (97,929)
Non-current portion ERBE 85,623
SHARE CAPITAL 29. R A<
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Issued and fully paid: EETRER
6,411,770,500 (2018: 6,411,770,500) 6,411,770,5000%
ordinary shares (=ZZ— /\*:6,411,770,5000% )
L 3,178,754 3,178,754

BEREAERIERERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T —NWF+_A=+—HItFE

30.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

30 K REl 2 BMR AR R AE

a) Statement of financial position of the Company a) ARFEZHMBERREK
2019 2018
—E—_hE —E-N\fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and TER IR - 1R & B H Ath B W 5108
other receivables 1,826 1,826
1,826 1,826
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables and accruals HEMENREBERESER 33,114 26,885
Borrowings BE 12,500 12,500
Convertible bonds AR E S 253,803 232,551
Non-convertible bonds TR R E 90,500 90,500
389,917 362,436
Net current liabilities RBEETFHE (388,091) (360,610)
Total assets less current BREERRBEE
liabilities (388,091) (360,610)
NET LIABILITIES EEFE (388,091) (360,610)
Capital and reserves BRA R #E
Share capital N 3,178,754 3,178,754
Reserves Gk (3,566,845) (3,539,364)
TOTAL EQUITY RS (388,091) (360,610)
Approved by: KEERIZ:

Ji Kaiping
Director

BE

1 04 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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Guo Peiyuan
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZ=%

30.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (cont'd)
b) Reserves of the Company

9}

Share-based

e VIR

—NE+ZA=+—RLFE

30 KR Al 2 BMRR R RFAEE 8
b) XRARZHEE

Equity
component of

payment convertible Accumulated
reserve bonds losses Total
UR#7 A TERES 2
BERARzHE ERHD R2itER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET AT TEL FHET
At 1 January 2018 —Z-N\%¥—-f—H 14,028 62,077 (3,574,709) (3,498,604)
Total comprehensive loss FRE2EEERLHE
for the year - - (40,760) (40,760)
Lapsed of share options BRERM (14,028) - 14,028 -
At 31 December 2018 and -\
at 1 January 2019 TZA=+-BRk
RZZB-NE—A—H - 62,077 (3,601,441) (3,539,364)
Total comprehensive loss FRNEEERESE
for the year - - (27,481) (27,481)
At 31 December 2019 R-E—NE
+-A=+—H - 62,077 (3,628,922) (3,566,845)

Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group

(i)

(ii)

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents the fair value of
the actual or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to the eligible participants recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for equity-settled share-
based payments in note 4 to the financial statements.

Equity component of convertible bonds

The equity component of convertible bonds represents the
value of the unexercised equity component of convertible bonds
issued by the Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for convertible bonds in note 4 to
the financial statements.

(iii) Foreign currency translation reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 4 to the
financial statements.

 FAEEREZMEREN

(i)

(ii)

HUROBERIFZHEE

VARt B ERA R 2 MBI IR IR 75

ﬁﬁwuﬂ?ﬂxﬁﬁﬁéﬁéluﬂxf"
B2 NFARMEBR MaE

T%%Eﬁi/\iﬂhtlﬂﬁr‘ﬁkﬁﬁz,ﬂ%%

RERNEABMBER ZAFE

AR &5 2 s 55
MR ES 2 BRSO EAREME
TR ESZ RITERESD ZE
B ECRBB B RR M 4P A
MR ES R & RER -

(iii) IR E

EXRERERREEIIEBYE
WERMEEZMEBELZHE - FHER
BB MR I SEART# Z & RT IR R
# o

BEREAERIERERAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T —NWF+_A=+—HItFE

31.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
The following table shows the Group’s changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities during the year:

NEEHERERMEE

a) MEEBHELANAEED

TREJIAEEFARETDELNEE

#eh

=
Finance Total
lease liabilities
Non- payable/ from
Convertible convertible Lease financing
Borrowings bonds bonds liabilities activities
EAmE MEEE
HEHE/ EEW
B8 TRKRES TURKRES HEEE =Rg L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET TET FHET FET
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-N&E—HF—H 167,240 198,920 90,352 190,582 647,094
Changes in cash flows HAenEz2E - - - (18,012) (18,012)
Non-cash changes FRe 2 EH
— interest charged —FERX 130 33,631 5,815 12,131 51,707
— interest paid or payable — DB AHEMERFKIER
classify to other payables Bk ER TR - - (5,667) - (5,667)
- exchange difference —-EBRER (8,335) - - (1,149) (9,484)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\FE+ZA=+—H 159,035 232,551 90,500 183,552 665,638
Adoption of HKFRS 16 RNBBMBREER
£16% - - - 2,415 2,415
At 1 January 2019 R-ZZT-NE—A—H 159,035 232,551 90,500 185,967 668,053
Changes in cash flows HeEREZED 7,079 - - (26,235) (19,156)
Non-cash changes FEE2EE
— additions —-RE - - - 13,537 13,537
— interest charged —MERHXE 467 21,251 5,430 11,142 38,290
— interest paid or payable — DA REMENRIEN
classify to other payables B ERFE - - (5,430) (1,447) (6,877)
- deemed acquisition of a - RRkE-RINEAR
subsidiary 2,372 - - 1,324 3,696
- exchange difference —-EBRER (2,586) - - (3,080) (5,666)
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NE+ZA=+—H 166,367 253,802 90,500 181,208 691,877

1 06 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (cont'd)
b) Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary

e VIR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T — N F+_A=+—HItFE

BB REREXRMKE @

b) RAKE-—BHEAQF

On 1 September 2019, control of an associate, 3t & X 55 i §th ik 7 &
BB MR AA], was transferred to the Company for no consideration.

RoZE-AFAA—H —HEEQF
RRGEMKEFERRQBZENED
BESETAQA-

HK$'000
FHET
Consideration: Fair value of the associate RE BERFAZATFE -
Fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities A FIEEMBERWEBER Y A FE:
as at the date of acquisition:
Property, plant and equipment Wz B REE 37,911
Deferred tax asset RERIBEE 8,286
Intangible assets B EE 329
Right-of-use assets ERAREEE 460
Trade receivable BUE SR 20,577
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables AR IR - R & & H M e KRIB 3,719
Bank and cash balances RIOTRBE2ER 1,331
Lease liabilities HE&E (1,324)
Other payables and accruals Ha I RIEREFTER (137,502)
Borrowings BE (2,372)
(68,585)
LESS: Non-controlling interest of B B AR 2 IR E R (51%)
the subsidiary (51%) (34,978)
Goodwill [EiS 33,607

R AEBHKEEESR DA contributed approximately
HK$56,728,000 and HK$15,015,000 to the Group's revenue and
profit for the year respectively for the period between the date of
acquisition and the end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2019, total
Group revenue for the year would have been HK$178,145,000, and
profit for the year would have been HK$67,368,000. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily
an indication of the revenue and results of operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2019, nor is intended to be a projection of
future results.

RS B R ER SRR ERXSE
AR R IEGR AR M AKEZ W
MERRF D B ERI£56,728,000% 7T &
15,015,0005 7T °

WEkBEEER -_ZE—NLFE—F —
BE ASBEZFRNBERZ B A
178,145,000 T & F W a5l # &
67,368,000 T 5 E A R EEF A A
BAVBERMEBSETEER=2Z—NF
—A-BERRmASEERBTERZ
W RS S M RIERKREREZTE
Al
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZ=Z

31.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (cont'd)

c¢) Disposal of subsidiaries
On 24 July 2019, the Company entered into agreements with
independent third parties to dispose of its interests in certain

108

subsidiaries.

Net assets at the date of disposal were as follows:

—NE+ZA=+—RBLFE

)

REERMZEEFENT

SN E=FHEI M

BB RERERMKE @

HEKB A

Al Z s o

R-ZE-NAFLA-TME AQFHE
AU EERNETHE

HK$'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment W BE REE 4,842
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERT IR 1R & I H Ath B Y FRIB 634
Bank and cash balances RITRBREET 925
Trade payables BB SR (38,266)
Other payables H fth & 1~ 58 (41,452)
Tax payable eI R IE (19,700)
Net liabilities disposed BEREZEEFE (93,017)
Release of foreign currency translation reserve BEINEIRE 724
Non-controlling interests FEfE AR A 2 (224)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMEB ARz e (100,212)
Total consideration — satisfied by cash wRE LIRS I 7,695
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HERELEZRSRAFE:
Cash consideration received BEWIRERE 5,187
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHECZRERERIRELEE (925)
4,262

National United Resources Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZ=%

32.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for
in the consolidated financial statements were as follows:

33.

e VIR

—NE+ZA=+—RLFE

3. REE
RIS - A BT E P M R EHE R
SHARBEWDT

2019 2018
—E-hEF AN
HK$000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Indemnity related to a former subsidiary HAIHE AR B R mE
(note 33) (F5E33) 6,817 6,920

At the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not consider it

probable that a claim will be made against the Group under the above

possible claim.

PENDING LITIGATIONS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following pending

litigations:

(a)

In September 2004, a Writ of Summons was served on the Company
by an individual third party demanding immediate repayment of
borrowings of approximately HK$1,600,000 together with the
interest thereon. As the Company had never borrowed money from
that individual third party, the Directors were of the opinion that
the Company had no obligation to pay the demanded amount. In
January 2005, an amended Writ of Summons was served on the
Company by the lender of the Group to clarify that the individual
third party acted as an agent of the lender. The Directors instructed
the lawyer of the Company to handle this matter. The loan advanced
by the lender of HK$1,523,000 together with interest and penalty
of HK$1,149,000, totaling of approximately HK$2,672,000, were
accrued in the financial statements (included in other borrowings
and other payables and accruals respectively) and has not yet been
settled as at 31 December 2019.

The Court has granted an order to adjourn sine die the plaintiffs’
application to set down this case on 15 March 2006. That is to say,
the lender and its agent have temporarily withheld the proceedings
against the Company. This claim has not been settled up to the date
of approval of these consolidated financial statements.

RBEPUR EFR/ AKETAREER L
AF e RE MR BEF AR

33.78 K T AR
RIEA - AEEBIATRBMART &

(@ —TETMFNA —REAZ=ZFTAALR
Al B E - BRBNEEE 491,600,000
B2 BERMBBEFE c HRAARER

WE%‘Z.TI/\"* EAEAFRE HitE
FRRERBABEAIMNAEREEZR

e E/\777£$ A REBBERA
MARBELEETNER  BEZE
ANE=ZTREFRAZRE-EELHER
AAFEMEEREBEET - ERAME
1,523,000/ 7T 2 B 3E B F 2 K& &1 5%
#%81,149,000/% 7T & &t 492,672,000/
T ERMBHRER RS Ao BIET AHAM
F‘%M&ﬁfﬁ%ﬁmlﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ S

T-NFT_A=FT—HHEHKREE-

ERERZEZEERF=-A+THBEFELE
2 EREAFEEDMANFARDE NE
FARHERBEEEHARAARNFAE
EREReVBmRIERR  LRED
;KTI\‘E
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZ=Z

—NE+ZA=+—RBLFE

33.PENDING LITIGATIONS (cont’d)

(b)

110

According to an agreement entered into by the Company, two of
its subsidiaries and two independent third parties in February 2003,
the Group disposed of a subsidiary, World Giant Limited ("World
Giant"”), a company engaged in property investment in the PRC. In
this connection, the Company has undertaken to indemnify World
Giant for, among others, any increase in the liabilities of World Giant
as a result of any claim for taxation arising from any transactions
effected on or before the completion date of the disposal. In
October 2004, World Giant received a payment request from the
PRC tax authority in respect of PRC property taxes relating to the
property held by World Giant, including the late payment surcharge
levied by the tax authority, of which approximately an amount of
RMB6,100,000 related to transactions on or before the completion
date. The existing management of World Giant had indicated to the
Directors that the amount in respect of transactions on or before the
completion date should be paid by the Company.

In February 2005, a Writ of Summons was served on the Company
demanding the payment of approximately RMB6,100,000. However,
such amounts were covered by the amount accrued in the financial
statements of World Giant at the time of disposal.

Accordingly, in the opinion of the Directors and having obtained an
opinion from the Company’s lawyer, the Group has no obligation to
pay the above taxes. Because of the uncertainty of the outcome of
this matter, the amount involved of approximately RMB6,100,000,
equivalent to approximately HK$6,817,000 (31 December 2018:
HK$6,920,000), has been shown as contingent liabilities in note 32
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Writ of Summons was served on the Company in February
2005. The Company has not received further claims from the
plaintiff up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements.

National United Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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(b)

RIBEARQF ARRWENB AR RMA
BYF TR -_ZEZ=F AN
FARBLE—HETRUENERE
mWEﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ@“ﬂU¥§D°$
AEIG M A EEAEEL BERE
BIEAEZHNBE %ﬁa%&zm%
WOIRGMEEZEABIBHER  BHE
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ZENF+A EEEEPERBERNR
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CBEERBE BB R EK - KPR
%AEMmmmwmm K ELSERK A B sk
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EFRTN BHEEKABHRZARSHE
REEHRARR IS o

RZZZERF_R AAREEERIN
AN ER#6,100,000 THEE - SR 1 - B RE
HBHEONDERAEZHBRRZT 2R
B ©

Hit  E2R2A (TCEAARRRZMNE
BIASBETESN EMRBEBEZEE-
MR EEZEREREE B MY

B #4 ANER#6,100,000t 2 %A (B E
46,817,000 — 2 — N\F+ = A

=+—H:6,920,000& 7t ) B 5 AL A B
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZ=%

33.PENDING LITIGATIONS (cont’d)

(o]

In 2014, five customers of FMEEHMEERZFHL(EE)ER
A\l ("AVIC Guojin”) have taken civil actions against AVIC Guojin
in the court in Qingdao claiming the contracts of trading precious
metals on the platform of AVIC Guojin being invalid and recovery
of the related losses totalling approximately RMB11,000,000,
equivalent to approximately HK$13,131,000. In April 2015, the
court in Qingdao handed down the judgment in favour of AVIC
Guojin in one of the five cases and the successors of the deceased
plaintiff in that case appealed against the judgment in May 2015.
The court suspended the proceedings of the other four civil actions
pending the results of the first case.

In May 2015, two customers of AVIC Guojin have taken civil actions
against AVIC Guojin, Qingdao Xinshiyuan Precious Metal Limited (&
EBttRESEBAMR AR, and Qingdao Chengyang Sub-branch of
China Construction Bank Corporation (FR B2 IBITRMHBREA

FEWI5¥7T) in court in Qingdao claiming the contracts of tradlng
precious metals on the platform of AVIC Guojin being invalid and
recovery of the related losses totalling approximately RMB1,600,000,
equivalent to approximately HK$1,910,000. The hearing of the case
is still in progress and the court has not handed down the judgment
as at the date of this report.

Having considered the foregoing judgment in April 2015 by the
court in favour of the AVIC Guojin and taken the legal advice, the
existing management of AVIC Guojin had indicated to the Directors
that it is not probable that material loss will be suffered by AVIC
Guojin. Therefore, no provision has been made for the above claims.

33. 8 K T & FFAA

(c)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T —NWF+_A=+—HItFE

33.PENDING LITIGATIONS (cont’d)

(d) On 24 June 2015, First Concept Industrial Group Limited ("“First
Concept”) served a notice of arbitration (the “Notice”) on
SouthGobi Sands LLC (“SGS"), being a wholly owned subsidiary of
SouthGobi Resources Ltd. In the Notice, First Concept sought the
Advanced Payment from SGS, according to a coal supply agreement
dated 19 May 2014 between First Concept and SGS, representing
the prepayment amount advanced by First Concept for the supply
of coking coal by SGS to First Concept under such agreement. The
arbitral proceedings are deemed to have commenced on 24 June
2015, as the date when the respondent received the Notice. As at
the date of this report, the arbitral proceedings are in progress.

First Concept paid in advance to SGS for purchasing coals from SGS.
However, SGS supplied and First Concept collected zero tonne of
coal in the contracted period. As such, SGS refused to repay the
Advanced Payment to First Concept. It is justified for First Concept
to recover the Advanced Payment from SGS by legal action, and First

Concept proceeded accordingly as mentioned above.

SGS has been ordered to pay the sum of US$11.5 million (which
SGS had received as a prepayment for the purchase of coal) to First
Concept pursuant to an arbitration award dated 4 January 2018

("Partial Award”).

First Concept and SGS entered into a deed of settlement on 16
November 2018 (“Settlement Deed”), pursuant to which First
Concept has agreed to accept the sum of US$14,282,070 as full
and final satisfaction of the sums payable according to the Partial
Award. Under the Settlement Deed, SGS shall pay the sum of
US$14,282,070 to First Concept in 12 monthly instalments with
the last instalment payable on or before 30 September 2019. First

Concept was disposed of during the current reporting period.

1 1 2 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HEZ=%

33.PENDING LITIGATIONS (cont’d)

(e)

On 15 January 2016, It R EH S E A FFZMEPFT (the Labour
Dispute Arbitration Committee of Miyun County, Beijing City*) ruled
that TMTC Rental shall pay a compensation amount of RMB560,727
to the applicants in respect of an employee’s death caused during
the course of the employment and TMTC Rental shall also pay the
applicants an dependant pension on a monthly basis. TMTC Rental
has made an appeal against the arbitration decision to the People’s
Court of Miyun County, Beijing City which was rejected on 27 June
2016. TMTC Rental had settled the compensation amount on 13
October 2016.

On 31 January 2019, the Company, First Concept and NUR
Clean Energy Investment Limited (“NUR Clean”) (wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company) issued a writ of summons in the High
Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region against 9
defendants for (i) breach of fiduciary/director/employee/contractual
duties; (i) conspiracy; (iii) dishonest assistance; (iv) fraud; and (v)
breach of contract. The defendants are Mr. Li Tao, Mr. Yang Fan
(former director and chairman of the Company), Mr. Li Hui (former
director of the Company, First Concept and NUR Clean), Mr. Feng
Tao (former director and deputy general manager of First Concept),
Mr. Chan Chon Hong (former employee of First Concept), Sincere
Logistics Limited, China Wish Limited, Sino King Trading (HK) Co.,
Limited, and Huge Power Co., Ltd. First Concept was disposed of
during the current reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T —NWF+_A=+—HItFE

34.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following

4.BB AR5
(@) BEBREMBEER

HEEHMKE2R
ZH0 - REBERF AR

BMETAETIRS

transactions and balances with related parties during the year: R&EF:
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FHET

Car rental service income received from B — EBf & 2 7 W ELAY

an associate REREREWA 25,345 53,576
Amount due to a related party FE— & BB 7 5ROR 2,911 -

The Company received car rental service income of approximately
HK$9,084,000 from third parties through an application operated
by the related party during the year ended 31 December 2019 and
as at 31 December 2019 has a trade receivable of approximately
HK$10,864,000 from third parties through an application operated
by the related party. Two directors of the Company, Ji Kaiping and
Guo Peiyuan, have control over the related party.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

HE-_T-hEF+-_A=1+—HLFE"
AArBREG T EEZEAREAME=
75 W B 5 B8 FE & AR 75 U A #99,084,0007%
TomRZE-hAFEF+ZA=FT—H K
ARIBBEM T EEZEARABEIE
ZHZEWE 5 F#)10,864,000 T » A&
NAIMBESLFAT RBIFRGEF 2B
72 PR o

(b) AEBETEEREAEME:

2019 2018

—E-AF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

Short term employee benefits EHESRA 715 1,379

Equity-settled share option expenses AT 25 45 H B8 B iERT 2 - -

Retirement benefit scheme RIRRE GBI

contributions - -
Total compensation paid to IRTEFEEBABZHEBE

key management personnel 715 1,379

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements.

1 1 4 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T — N F+_A=+—HItFE

35.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of consolidated financial

5. Z\HE s 2EMTA

BERNGFEeRITANRENRZFKEAEN

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: T
Financial assets SREE
2019 2018
—ZE-AF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Financial assets at amortised REBHEAATEZEREE
cost (including cash and cash (BEFReRERRESEEH)
equivalents)
Trade receivables JEWE S 41,847 558
Financial assets included in prepayments, st AJB 7018 « 2 & M H b fE UK
deposits and other receivables REZEMEE 46,680 124,596
Bank and cash balances RO LBReLER 3,309 1,119
91,836 126,273
Financial liabilities cREE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Financial liabilities REBHEAATEZERER
at amortised cost
Trade payables BB SR 320 38,590
Financial liabilities included in FFAEMENFKIBREER
other payables and accruals ZEEmAaRE 246,666 202,580
Borrowings BE 166,367 159,035
Convertible bonds AR ES 253,802 232,551
Non-convertible bonds TR ES 90,500 90,500
757,655 723,256

BRBAERERERAR 115
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T —NWF+_A=+—HItFE

36.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including
foreign currency risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

(b)

116

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the Group entities. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no material exposures to interest rate risk in relation
to interest-bearing assets and liabilities of the Group as the Group's
income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk mainly in relation to its trade
and other receivables, cash deposits with banks and maximum
exposure of credit risk is equal to the carrying amounts of these
financial assets. Cash and bank transactions counterparties are
limited to financial institutions with good credit rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentration of credit risk as approximately 34% (2018: 55%) of
the Group's trade receivables were due from the Group’s largest
trade debtor. The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products are made to customers with an appropriate credit history.
The Group reviews the recoverable amount of the trade and other
receivables on a regular basis and provision for doubtful debts is
made in accordance with the Group’s policies. In addition, the
Management reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt regularly to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
recognised for irrecoverable debts. In this regard, the Management
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

National United Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T — N F+_A=+—HItFE

36.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36.BEMETEEERBE (&)
POLICIES (cont’'d)

(b) Credit risk (cont'd) (b) EERBR (&)

The Group considers whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of financial assets on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period by comparing the risk of a default occurring
as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. Especially the following information
is used:

— actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause
a significant change to the borrower’s ability to meet its
obligations;

— actual or expected significant changes in the operating results
of the borrower;

—  significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments
of the same borrower;

- significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour
of the borrower, including changes in the payment status of
borrowers.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is
more than 30 days past due in making a contractual payment. A
default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make
contractual payments within 60 days of when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group. The Group normally categorises
a loan or receivable for write off when a debtor fails to make
contractual payments greater than 360 days past due. Where loans
or receivables have been written off, the Group, if practicable and
economical, continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt
to recover the receivable due.

The Group uses two categories for non-trade receivables which
reflect their credit risk and how the loan loss provision is determined
for each of the categories. In calculating the expected credit loss
rates, the Group considers historical loss rates for each category and
adjusts for forward looking data.
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HONERASNEORER EEERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T —NWF+_A=+—HItFE

36.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (cont’'d)
(b) Credit risk (cont'd)

36. M EMEE R R RBEE @

(b) FERE (8)

Category Definition Loss provision

5l EH BEER

Performing Low risk of default and strong capacity to pay 12 month expected losses
B %Y EHRRIE (e % 1218 A TR HA & 18
Non-performing Significant increase in credit risk Lifetime expected losses
TEH fEE R AR N T HATREE IR

All of these receivables are considered to have low risk and under
the "Performing” category because they have a low risk of default
and have strong ability to meet their obligations.

(c) Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

On demand or

MR ZEERIE 2 ENERIEARTE
BEffzend HEHBRRAARERR
RN L] ERIT -

() RBEZRAMR

AREB s HEBTERERB I RBERZR
PESHF HMERAEE R EHE
SREUNEBNEEHEEHNEHEST

FEBZETORBRN KRG ENREH
Rz E@MEBEINMARLT

within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5years Over 5 years Total
EEXZ-FR —E-F —ZEF EEHNLE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZ-hE+=-A=+-8 TET TET TERT TET TERT
Trade payables ERE S 320 - - - 320
Financial liabilities included in AARMENFERESER
other payables and accruals ZERBE 246,666 - - - 246,666
Borrowings BE 166,862 - - - 166,862
Lease liabilities HEAR 142,949 35,222 6,394 2,520 187,085
Convertible bonds AkER 254,301 - - - 254,301
Non-convertible bonds TR ES 90,500 - - - 90,500
901,598 35,222 6,394 2,520 945,734
On demand or
within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Over 5 years Total
[EERK—FR —E-F —ERF AENRE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\E+ZA=+—-H° THET THT THT TR TR
Trade payables ERE ST 38,590 - - - 38,590
Financial liabilities included i~ st AEMENHEREFER
other payables and accruals JEMEE 202,580 - - - 202,580
Borrowings “E 168,900 - - - 168,900
Finance lease payables ERNRMERERR 93,875 50,424 68,475 - 212,774
Convertible bonds AR B 84,468 152,600 - - 237,068
Non-convertible bonds TR ES 95,000 - - - 95,000
683,413 203,024 68,475 - 954,912
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE T — N F+_A=+—HItFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (cont’d)

(d) Capital management
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain sufficient capital in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies and processes during the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio, which
is calculated as borrowings (including lease liabilities/finance lease
payables) over the amount of total assets. The Group's strategy is to
maintain the gearing ratio at an appropriate level. The gearing ratio
as at 31 December 2019 was 184.61% (2018: 182.22%).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 18
September 2019, 5 November 2019, 25 November 2019, 31 January
2020, 19 February 2020, 27 February 2020, 31 March 2020, 2 April
2020 and 29 April 2020 relating to, among others, the update of
suspension of trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange.

36.EAKBREERZRBEK @)
(d) EXREE

AEFREAER T BB ENREAEE
BERELE UHEBANDER UXHFHE
EBREERSNREE

AEBEEEHEAREE IHEBLERR
ZEHRIEUEERBRFAMELAE-
FERFAAREEAREER A5EKS
ARG TREZRESHE  MBRERD
BA -BITHROIEHEEEURER
BoEHE_ET-NERZZT—)\F+A
=t—BILEFE - EBE BEREFL
mEE) o

AEBNEEAGBEL R (BE (REFA
EEE/EARERERE)BRUEE
BESE)ERER - AEEZREE
BEABLEREFRNAEKFE-R=2Z
—hWE+-A=+—B BEAEBHLEAE
184.61% (ZZ— N\F:182.22% ) °

7. EHEREE
FRRBAAATDBHRE=ZZ-NEALA TN
ZTE-NAF+—ARER -ZE—hE+—
AZ+HB -ZT=FF—A=+—H =%
—EE-_A+AR 2 -TE-_A - ++
H ZZ2-F=RA=+—H Z—ZTZFNQN

Following the Listing Review Committee Hearing on 15 January 2020, RIE-_EF—A+THBETLITERKEE S
the Listing Review Committee requested the Company to provide further R FTERZEEERARTERIES
information by submitting a written submission and invited the Company EMRAREE —FER WEFERARBN E
and the Listing Division to a further hearing. The Company has submitted TREEE—FRA - AR ER_E_ZTF
the written submission on 4 March 2020. The further hearing, which TAMHRREERF RN _TF=
was previously scheduled on 31 March 2020, has been postponed by the A=1T—B&8IT2E—FTRACDELTEXRE
Listing Review Committee.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the MEGRRERN —_E_EF+tA+=HE=Eg
Board of Directors on 13 July 2020.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

L FERBEBRE

AEEBRENBAYRFECXEREERAGHE
(BB ECTERERMBHRRALREERSE (1
EE))FIEMT

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out below.

For the year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-HLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

RESULTS E3 —E-NE —E-N\%F —E—+tF —E-REF —T-RE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THT FET THL THET

(restated)

(E=75)

Revenue Wz 97,767 54,697 58,566 51,737 77,818

Profit/(loss) before tax BREAET (BE) 72,264 (15,308) (137,171) (1,456,584) (131,399)

Income tax FriSH (2,899) - - 14,135 (1,968)

Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/ (BB) 69,365 (15,308) (137,171) (1,442,449) (133,367)
Attributable to: il

Owners of the Company AREHEFA 61,556 (14,673) (131,036) (1,438,382) (132,674)

Non-controlling interests SRR 7,809 (635) (6,135) (4,067) (693)

69,365 (15,308) (137,171) (1,442,449) (133,367)

At 31 December
R+=A=+-8H

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAEE “E-NE TN\ —T—tF NS 1%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FET FET THL FHL

(restated)

(mE3))

Non-current assets IRBDEE 252,865 168,491 189,355 165,341 777,486

Current assets MBEE 129,085 196,795 172,464 303,223 1,105,287

Current liabilities MBARE (903,916) (879,051) (819,876) (526,357) (655,106)

Non-current liabilities EnBAE (41,808) (85,623) (137,298) (396,905) (342,656)

Net (liabilities)/assets (BfE) /EEZRE (563,774) (599,388) (595,355) (454,698) 885,011
Attributable to: il

Owners of the Company ARAERA (535,621) (599,404) (596,356) (461,646) 849,026

Non-controlling interests FERER (28,153) 16 1,001 6,948 35,985

Total equity HER (563,774) (599,388) (595,355) (454,698) 885,011

1 20 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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